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Message From The Chair 

As New York State seeks to build a world-class energy infrastructure for the 
21st Century, Governor Andrew M. Cuomo is scaling up the State’s clean 
energy system through support for innovative market-based solutions and 
public-private partnerships.

Through these partnerships, New York is working to improve energy 
effi ciency, empower customers with greater choice, and encourage greater 
penetration of clean energy generation and innovative technologies resulting 
in better and more affordable energy. NYSERDA is collaboratively working 
with other state agencies and authorities to build a foundation that can 
provide all New Yorkers with an energy system that is clean, reliable, 
resilient, and affordable.  

Over the past year, NYSERDA has continued its investment in, and 
commitment to, energy effi ciency and renewable energy and provided 
support to critical research and development initiatives to advance 
the clean energy goals of the State. NYSERDA will continue to play a 
signifi cant role in accelerating the deployment of clean energy across the 
State through such initiatives as the expanded $1 billion NY-Sun solar 
initiative and the market-driven $1 billion NY Green Bank.   

These initiatives along with an open regulatory proceeding that will 
fundamentally reshape energy regulation in the State – Reforming 
the Energy Vision (REV) – demonstrate that New York is clearly a national 
leader in expanding the clean energy economy and advancing clean 
technology projects.

Richard L. Kauffman
Chairman of Energy and 
Finance for New York 
NYSERDA Chair
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On the cover: 
Owens Corning, the building materials company 

known for it its pink-dyed fi berglass insulation, 

is getting greener. Owens Corning worked with 

Constellation and NYSERDA to install a 2.7-MW 

(DC) solar generation system at its thermal 

and acoustical insulation plant in Feura Bush, 

New York. Constellation fi nanced, built, owns, 

and maintains the system. 

Constellation is a subsidiary of Exelon Corp. 

that supplies power, natural gas, and energy 

products and services to residents and 

businesses across the United States. Owens 

Corning buys the electricity that is generated 

from the solar array under a 20-year purchase 

agreement with Constellation.

The solar photovoltaic array has 9,018 

ground-mounted panels that occupy more 

than nine acres, and is one of the largest solar 

installations in Upstate New York to date. It is 

designed to generate about 6% of the plant’s 

annual electricity needs. The system also 

has fl exibility to expand capacity and to take 

advantage of new technology, permitting, and 

policy options that may arise over the term 

of the power purchase agreement.

Constellation reports that the solar generation 

system has been operating as expected since 

installation in October 2013. The system is 

expected to generate 3.3 million kWh annually. 

According to U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency data for the region, generating the same 

amount of electricity using nonrenewable sources 

would result in the release of approximately 

2,339 metric tons of CO
2 or the equivalent 

emissions from 487 passenger vehicles annually. 
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Message From The President and CEO 

New York State is a national leader in effective energy policy and innovative 
solutions, and is making great progress in transforming the clean energy 
landscape, in support of Governor Cuomo’s call to accelerate the scale-up 
of clean energy projects and spur more innovation in the energy sector. 
Over the course of this year, NYSERDA has played a critical role and launched 
major new initiatives. 

NYSERDA seeks to support directly clean energy innovation and investment 
and also to invest in developing the preconditions for private marketsand 
actors to do so without continued need for grants and support. The 
Authority aims to build a bridge to an energy market and industry that is 
sustainable and viable without public subsidies. The launch of NY Green 
Bank, the largest green bank in the nation, is a major initiative to spur the 
private fi nancial sector to drive energy effi ciency and clean, renewable 
energy across the State. In addition, NYSERDA is leading efforts to deliver 
an unprecedented amount of solar energy over the next decade through 
the $1 billion NY-Sun initiative, an historic scale-up leading to an expected 
decrease in prices and a phase-out of the need for solar incentives.  

Other support for the Governor’s energy agenda during the year included: 
Charge NY, to accelerate the use and benefi ts of electric vehicles through 
the building of charging stations; Cleaner, Greener Communities, to 
empower regions to create more sustainable development and encourage 
smart growth practices; and Fuel NY, a 21st century fuel infrastructure 
protection strategy from the pipeline to the pump. 

NYSERDA also began planning for new initiatives, including Renewable 
Heat NY, a long-term commitment to help the high effi ciency, low-emission 
wood-fi red heating industry reach scale; NY Prize, a new microgrid initiative 
to facilitate distributed electricity generation; and Community Solar, a 
NY-Sun program that is expected to open the door to more affordable solar 
power. At the same time, we continue to support energy effi ciency programs 
and innovative clean energy business development across the State.

With all of these advances, NYSERDA is exploring new approaches through 
initiatives such as Reforming the Energy Vision (REV) and the Clean Energy 
Fund to attack gaps and barriers – in technology, fi nance, and business 
models – through public-private partnerships and the engagement of 
energy consumers and markets. Looking forward, NYSERDA will continue 
to increase New York State’s adoption of clean energy, as it animates and 
transforms markets.

John B. Rhodes
President and CEO, 
NYSERDA
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Mission 
Advance innovative energy solutions in ways that improve 
New York’s economy and environment.

Vision
Serve as a catalyst – advancing energy innovation, technology, 
and investment; transforming New York’s economy; and 
empowering people to choose clean and effi cient energy as 
part of their everyday lives.

Core Values 
Objectivity, integrity, public service, partnerships, and innovation.

NYSERDA’s Promise to New Yorkers

NYSERDA provides 

resources, expertise, and 

objective information so 

New Yorkers can make 

confi dent, informed 

energy decisions.
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Transitioning to a clean energy innovation economy requires a comprehensive 
approach to establish robust market demand for clean energy; create an 
engaged public; foster a vibrant technology innovation and commercial 
“ecosystem”; develop a skilled clean energy workforce across the full spectrum 
of skill levels; and support sound policy framework to internalize environmental 
costs. Working in synergy, these elements prepare New York State to address 
its energy challenges–from climate change, to petroleum dependency, and an 
aging infrastructure–while reducing harmful air pollutants and GHG emissions 
and improving New York State’s clean energy economy. Transformations take 
time and will only occur when all of these elements are present; therefore a 
complete and sustained effort is necessary. 

Based on this premise, NYSERDA is advancing a comprehensive clean energy 
program portfolio that develops and deploys new and innovative technologies 
to help New York State meet its energy needs. NYSERDA programs are 
organized into fi ve portfolios, each representing a complementary group of 
offerings with common areas of energy-related focus and similar objectives. 

Energy Effi ciency and Renewable Energy Deployment

Helping New York State to achieve its aggressive energy effi ciency and 
renewable energy goals – including programs to motivate increased effi ciency 
in energy consumption by consumers (residential, commercial, municipal, 
institutional, industrial, and transportation), to increase production by 
renewable power suppliers, to support market transformation, and to 
provide fi nancing.

Energy Technology Innovation and Business Development 

Helping to stimulate a vibrant innovation ecosystem and a clean energy 
economy in New York State – including programs to support product research, 
development, and demonstrations; clean energy business development; and 
the knowledge-based community at the Saratoga Technology + Energy Park® 
(STEP®).

Energy Education and Workforce Development 

Helping to build a generation of New Yorkers ready to lead and work in a clean 
energy economy – including consumer behavior, youth education, workforce 
development, and training programs for existing and emerging technologies.

Energy and the Environment 

Helping to assess and mitigate the environmental impacts of energy 
production and use in New York State – including environmental research and 
development, regional initiatives to improve environmental sustainability and 
West Valley Site Management.

Energy Data, Planning, and Policy  

Helping to ensure that New York State policymakers and consumers have 
objective and reliable information to make informed energy decisions – 
including State Energy Planning, policy analysis to support the Regional 
Greenhouse Gas Initiative and other energy initiatives, emergency 
preparedness, and a range of energy data reporting.

Program Portfolios 
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The Bond Buyer recognized 

New York State with a 

“Deal of the Year for Small 

Issuer Financing” award 

for a $24.3 million bond 

issuance for residential 

energy effi ciency fi nancing. 

Representing a unique 

fi nancing collaboration 

between NYSERDA and the 

NYS Environmental Facilities 

Corporation, the bond 

issuance was the fi rst in the 

nation to use clean water 

funds to combat air pollution 

and increase energy 

effi ciency in homes.

Mission Outcomes

Effi cient Use of Energy

NYSERDA provides energy solutions that reduce the energy 
consumption and increase the energy effi ciency of New York State’s 

residents and businesses.

Renewable and Diverse Energy Supplies

NYSERDA diversifi es New York State’s portfolio of energy resources 
by growing renewable and distributed generation resources 

and reducing petroleum use.

Clean Energy Economy

NYSERDA catalyzes economic growth by supporting technology and 
business innovation and by developing a skilled clean energy workforce.

A Cleaner Environment

NYSERDA reduces the environmental impact of energy 
production and use.

Mission Outcomes
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Whole Foods Market participated in the New 

Construction Program, the Combined Heat and 

Power Program, and the NY-Sun initiative to build 

its new 56,000-square-foot grocery store in 

Brooklyn. Integrating energy effi ciency measures 

into the design and construction of the building 

resulted in annual electric savings of more than 

2,500 MWh and annual energy cost savings of 

nearly $370,000.

NYSERDA’s programs demonstrate that investments in energy effi ciency, 
renewable energy, and clean energy technology development provide 
substantial economic and environmental benefi ts and move New York 
State toward a more sustainable energy future. These programs continue 
to provide benefi ts year after year, not just in the year in which they are 
installed. As a result:

Increasing Energy Effi ciency
•  Through December 2013, NYSERDA achieved over $6.8 billion in 

cumulative energy bill savings through the System Benefi ts Charge (SBC) 
and the Energy Effi ciency Portfolio Standard (EEPS).
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•  For every $1 in energy effi ciency funds spent by NYSERDA on energy 
effi ciency improvement projects, $3 in energy bill savings were realized by 
program participants.

•  More than 566,700 households and 28,500 commercial, industrial and 
institutional customers have reduced their energy use and annual energy 
bills by participating in NYSERDA programs.

Growing Diverse, Renewable Energy Supplies
•  Through 2013, NYSERDA supported the installation of renewable 

generation at over 10,200 locations across New York State, primarily 
under the Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) program.

•  To date, NYSERDA’s Combined Heat and Power (CHP) programs 
have led to the installation of over 150 MW of distributed generation 
at 122 sites across New York State. Another 42 MW of projects 
are under design and construction. 

Creating a Clean Energy Economy
•  As a result of NYSERDA’s technology and business development 

investments, there are more than 260 new and improved clean energy 
products in the market.

•  For every $1 invested by NYSERDA in product development, New York 
State realized approximately $8 in statewide economic and environmental 
benefi ts, including the creation of over 700 net jobs in 2012. S
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•  More than 34,000 classroom participants received training through 
NYSERDA’s clean energy workforce development programs and Energy 
Codes and Standards Program.

Protecting Our Environment
•  In 2013, NYSERDA’s energy effi ciency and renewable energy programs 

eliminated more than 4,280 annual tons of NOx, 4,460 annual tons of 
SO2, and nearly 3.8 million annual tons of CO2 into New York State’s air – 
equivalent to removing 742,400 cars from the highways.

Isolation Sciences developed and patented the 

Continuous Access Port (CAP) for laboratory 

fume hoods. A tough, clear and pliable plastic 

fi lm that attaches to the bottom of the door 

of a hood, the CAP reduces the amount of air 

exhausted through the hood, conserving 

energy consumption by over 80 percent. 

Nationwide, fume hoods consume more than 

$4 billion worth of energy every year.

Mission Outcomes 
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The initiatives described in this section represent areas of 
focus for NYSERDA and accomplish the following goals:

   Address unique opportunities to create 
public-private partnerships.

   Further leverage private sector funds.

   Develop new energy resources.

   Support job growth.

   Help the State and its communities prepare for 
a more resilient and sustainable future. 

During the 2014 

planning period, 

NYSERDA will under-

take major initiatives 

of key strategic 

importance for the 

State as part of 

Governor Cuomo’s 

clean energy agenda. 

Source: iStockphoto

Strategic Initiatives Strategic Initiatives
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NY Green Bank is a part of Governor 

Andrew M. Cuomo’s strategic statewide 

plan to scale up clean energy, enhance 

New York State’s competitiveness for clean 

energy businesses, and make energy 

systems more resilient and reliable.

NY Green Bank 
Governor Cuomo introduced NY Green Bank in his 2013 State of the State 
address as the fi nancial engine that will mobilize private investment to build 
a more cost-effective, resilient, and clean energy system in New York State. 
NY Green Bank is dedicated to overcoming current market barriers in 
clean energy fi nancing markets and increasing overall capital availability 
through various forms of fi nancial support such as credit enhancement, 
project aggregation, and securitization. By collaborating with the private 
sector, NY Green Bank will leverage its funds with private capital to facilitate 
the transition to New York State’s clean energy future.

The overarching goal is to use government resources to facilitate access to 
fi nancing where capital is currently constrained. NY Green Bank will support 
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projects in a broad range of commercially proven technologies, including 
renewable energy generation technologies, energy effi ciency measures, 
electricity load reduction, and on-site clean generation.

During 2013, NYSERDA took several steps to establish NY Green 
Bank in response to the Governor’s initiative. NYSERDA retained an 
international consulting fi rm to perform a market assessment and make 
recommendations on the organization of NY Green Bank. NYSERDA used 
the results of the study to fi le a petition with PSC for establishment and 
initial capitalization of NY Green Bank. PSC approved the petition in an 
Order issued on December 19, 2013. NY Green Bank was offi cially open for 
business on February 5, 2014. 

During the next year, as a division of NYSERDA, NY Green Bank will:

•  Continue development of internal operations and procedures, 
reporting metrics and evaluation plan, and the initial business plan 
to guide future direction. 

•  Strategically invest its capital to expand fi nancing markets for 
clean energy projects. 

•  Secure necessary funding to fully capitalize NY Green Bank 
over a multi-year period.

•  Identify partners and transactions within  NY Green Bank’s 
investment mandate.

Program PortfoliosStrategic Initiatives

By collaborating with 

the private sector, 

NY Green Bank will 

leverage its funds 

with private capital to 

facilitate the transition 

to New York State’s 

clean energy future.
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Strategic Initiatives

The 1.56-MW rooftop solar project at Jetro 

Cash and Carry’s Restaurant Depot facility is 

one of the largest solar projects in New York 

City. It includes smart grid technology that 

overcomes technological barriers and allows 

large solar photovoltaic (PV) systems to 

connect safely with Con Edison’s network. 

The system includes more than 4,700 solar 

panels and integrates an advanced super-

visory control and data acquisition (SCADA) 

computer-controlled communications system.
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NY-Sun and Community Solar NY
The NY-Sun initiative, a dynamic public-private partnership, drives growth 
of the solar industry and makes solar technology more affordable for all 
New Yorkers. Since Governor Cuomo launched NY-Sun in 2012, a total of 
316 MW of solar photovoltaic (PV) has been installed or is under contract, 
more than was installed in the entire prior decade. In his 2013 State of the 
State address, Governor Cuomo announced that the initiative would extend 
to 2023. Funding of nearly $1 billion has been authorized over 10 years to 
meet a statewide target of 3 gigawatts installed capacity. 

This major commitment is expected to provide long-term program certainty 
to PV system developers, attract signifi cant private investment, enable the 
sustainable development of a robust PV industry in New York, create well-
paying jobs, improve reliability of the electric grid, and reduce air pollution. 
To accomplish these objectives, the program provides incentives for 
installation and works to advance technology as well as reduce system and 
PV balance-of-system (BOS) costs. 

Despite the success of NY-Sun, opportunities remain to expand solar 
energy into new markets. In his 2014 State of the State address, Governor 
Cuomo established Community Solar NY, a comprehensive solar initiative 
that strives to make solar energy available to all New Yorkers who want it. 
This initiative includes K-Solar, a program to help school administrators 
interested in reducing energy costs and creating healthier environments 
for students through on-site solar installations. In addition, NYSERDA and 
NYPA will encourage schools and other institutions to serve as hubs for 
developing community-based models to increase purchasing power and 
lower installation costs for entire neighborhoods. 

During the next year, NYSERDA will:

•  Transition the Customer-Sited Tier PV programs to a Megawatt (MW) Block 
structure that reduces project incentives in transparent and predictable 
ways based on acheiving an established MW threshold; provides certainty 
regarding the value of incentive to be received; and allows different 
incentives and MW block sizes in different regional markets.

•  Work with Long Island Power Authority (LIPA) and PSEG Long Island on 
a coordinated approach to provide incentives for residential and small 
non-residential buildings on Long Island. 

•  Work with NYPA on a coordinated approach to provide incentives for 
NYPA customers.

•  Launch Community Solar NY and K-Solar as the next phase of NY-Sun 
and work with NYPA to engage schools and other community-based 
institutions to serve as solar hubs throughout the State. 

•  Work in collaboration with NYPA to target opportunities to reduce PV BOS 
costs to further drive down PV cost. 

•  Work with a Low-to-Moderate Income PV Working Group to provide lower 
income households with greater opportunity to participate in the 
PV market.

Funding of nearly 

$1 billion has been 

authorized over 

10 years to meet 

a statewide target 

of 3 gigawatts 

installed capacity. 
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Strategic Initiatives

•  Seek high-leveraging strategic research investments that offer the 
potential to improve the technology and also grow New York State’s 
cleantech economy.

•  Continue current PV technical training for installers, practitioner 
certifi cation and accreditation of training programs, and fi nancial 
incentives for on-the-job training.

•  Expand science, technology, engineering, and math training for high 
school students to increase technical skills and acquaint them with 
careers in the clean energy sector.

•  Educate and train code enforcement offi cers and other public offi cials with 
roles in the permitting, inspection or approval process for a PV system. 

•  In cooperation with NY Green Bank, develop fi nancing strategies for 
customer-sited PV to help accelerate market penetration.

Community Solar NY 

is a comprehensive 

solar initiative that 

strives to make solar 

energy available to all 

New Yorkers who 

want it.
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Students gain hands-on experience in construction, energy effi ciency, and renewable energy through NYSERDA-funded workforce training.
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Efforts to improve resiliency will support 

highly populated areas where these 

vulnerabilities are intensifi ed.

Improving Resiliency
Recent natural disasters have demonstrated the interdependency of 
New York State’s fuel distribution, electrical, telecommunications, and 
public health and safety systems. These systems are highly vulnerable to 
severe weather events, and these vulnerabilities are intensifi ed in highly-
populated areas. 

New initiatives were developed to assure availability of fuel during declared 
emergencies, particularly for fi rst responders. For example, through the 
Governor’s Fuel NY Initiative, a fi rst of its kind State Strategic Gasoline 
Reserve was established on Long Island along with requirements for 
strategically located gas stations in the Downstate region to install wiring 
and a transfer switch to enable the use of portable emergency generators. 
Through the end of 2013, more than 500 gas stations had applied for funds 
to install transfer switches and equipment. In his 2014 State of the State 
address, Governor Cuomo announced that these efforts will be expanded to 
the Upstate region.

Despite recent emphasis and progress on grid modernization, the State’s 
electric grid continues to operate as an interdependent network that, while 
historically reliable, remains vulnerable to the increasing frequency and 
scale of severe weather events. The associated health, safety, and fi nancial 
consequences related to recent grid disruptions clearly point to a need for 
accelerated innovation in modernization and a change in thinking about how 
and where electricity is produced and used. 

Taking a step toward providing customers with more control and reliability 
in a changing environment, the Governor announced NYPrize, a $40 million 
competition to build community grids in several communities. Once 
installed, these stand-alone clean energy systems will enable communities 
to maintain electricity during extreme weather events and emergencies, 
while providing tools for customers to manage their energy use. This 
initiative is a collaboration between NYSERDA and the New York Power 
Authority and will represent a ground-breaking approach to spur innovative, 
integrated, and resilient energy networks. 

Additional smart grid strategies as well as enhancements to the State’s 
building stock and use of on-site generation and storage were also called 
for in the reports of the Commissions established by the Governor in the 
aftermath of Superstorm Sandy. To date, NYSERDA has issued $100 million 
in additional incentives to install combined heat and power systems capable 
of providing on-site power, $10 million for grid modernization projects, and 
$15 million for projects to improve energy and environmental performance 
of buildings while also addressing resiliency, recovery, and adaptability to 
power disruptions in the buildings sector.  

The associated health, 

safety, and fi nancial 

consequences related 

to recent grid disruptions 

clearly point to a need 

for accelerated innovation 

in modernization and a 

change in thinking about 

how and where electricity 

is produced and used. 

Strategic Initiatives
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During the next year, NYSERDA will: 

•  Continue to support the Downstate retail gas station backup wiring and 
generator program and State Strategic Gasoline Reserve and expand 
these efforts to communities in Upstate New York. 

•  In collaboration with the Department of Homeland Security and 
Emergency Services and DPS, complete an assessment of the potential 
feasibility of microgrids to enable continuity of critical public sector 
services during and after disruption in electric service caused by 
severe weather. 

•  Launch NYPrize in conjunction with NYPA to demonstrate how community 
scale energy networks play an important role in New York’s transition to a 
cleaner and more resilient energy system.

•  Continue to support the development and adoption of technologies that 
increase the resiliency, effi ciency, reliability, and overall performance of 
the electric grid, including systematic electric grid as well as micro-grid 
applications.

•  Continue to support deployment of distributed energy solutions including 
CHP systems that can alleviate bottlenecks in specifi c grid locations and 
can be used to provide power during electric outages at critical health and 
safety locations and facilities of refuge.

•  Develop and deploy products which increase the resiliency of buildings to 
manage disruptions in the electric grid including ride-thru capabilities and 
critical load support. 

•  Partner with Con Edison to deploy 125 MW of permanent demand 
reduction, demand response, and CHP in the downstate area.

•  Support research that assesses the current and predicted impacts of 
climate change to the energy sector, explore how risks associated with 
climate change can be cost-effectively managed and minimized, and 
establish baselines to assess climate change impacts in New York State.
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Program PortfoliosStrategic Initiatives

National Guard emergency 

fueling of vehicles after 

Superstorm Sandy.
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Charging station stickers, like the one shown 

above, will be placed on charging stations 

across the State.

Charge NY
Governor Cuomo announced the Charge NY initiative in his 2013 State 
of the State address. The initiative lays the groundwork to support up to 
40,000 additional plug-in electric vehicles (PEVs) in New York State by 2018. 
Charge NY includes the installation of up to 3,000 public and workplace 
charging stations to make New York State electric vehicle-ready. The Charge 
NY initiative includes funding to create the statewide network of public and 
workplace charging stations, reform the State’s regulatory regime to make it 
easier for the private sector to invest in PEV infrastructure, demonstrate new 
technologies and policies that can enhance the value proposition of owning 
a PEV, and educate New Yorkers about the benefi ts of PEVs. Building on 
this work, in late 2013 Governor Cuomo signed the Zero Emission Vehicle 
Memorandum of Understanding (ZEV MOU) with seven other states, 
signaling the State’s serious intent to work with the automakers and others 
in the industry to achieve the goals of the ZEV regulations, which require the 
sale of increasing percentages of PEVs over the next several years. 

NYSERDA is working with partners to deploy public and workplace PEV 
charging stations statewide as part of a research program to identify 
successful PEV charging sites, business models, and technologies. More 
than 300 charging stations have been installed to date. Funds have been 
provided to local governments to amend their permitting, zoning, and 
building codes to streamline processes for development of charging 
stations. Several research and demonstration projects are underway that 
will inform the public and private sector about how new technologies and 
policies, including those associated with the Smart Grid, can be used to 
advance and support PEV deployment. 

During the next year, NYSERDA will:

•  Continue deployment of PEV charging stations statewide and identify 
additional technology and policy demonstrations that can help improve 
the PEV market. 

•  Provide funds through the NY Electric Truck Voucher Incentive Program to 
encourage fl eets to purchase electric trucks. 

•  Expand work with other state agencies to identify cross-agency methods 
for expanding PEV use.

•  Continue working with the multistate Transportation and Climate Initiative 
to expand PEV use across the 
Northeast through planning projects and public-private partnerships.

•  Educate consumers and policymakers about the benefi ts of PEVs by 
creating a website with information on PEVs for multiple audiences 
in New York State. 

•  Conduct a survey of car buyers’ attitudes toward EVs to inform future 
outreach and education activities, and conducting workshops to educate 
local governments on PEV readiness policies.

Charge NY Initiative

LEADING THE
CHARGE

Strategic Initiatives

Charge NY includes 

the installation of up to 

3,000 public and 

workplace charging 

stations to make 

New York State 

electric vehicle-ready.
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Sustainable communities typically have 

lower costs, more jobs, and better quality 

of life because they adopt sustainable 

growth strategies.
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Developing Sustainable Communities
The Cleaner, Greener Communities (CGC) Program was announced by 
Governor Cuomo in his 2011 State of the State address to encourage 
communities to develop and implement regional sustainable growth 
strategies. It enhances support for development and implementation of 
regional sustainability plans to help ensure that the State’s ongoing and 
substantial investments in infrastructure help to move communities and 
New York State as a whole toward a more environmentally sustainable and 
resilient future. 

The CGC Program aims to fundamentally shift energy intensive and 
environmentally harmful development patterns in communities to ones that 
are more sustainable. In Phase I of the CGC Program, funding was provided 
to each of the 10 regions in New York State, as defi ned by the boundaries 
of the Regional Economic Development Council’s (REDC), to develop 
comprehensive, regional sustainability plans. Planning teams worked 
with public and private experts across a wide range of fi elds, along with 
community residents, to create integrated plans. 

In Phase II, NYSERDA is awarding funds for implementation efforts 
resulting from the plans. Projects selected are spread across the State 
and include policy and planning implementation efforts and large-scale 
capital projects, such as sustainable mixed-use developments and bus 
rapid transit systems. 

Subsequent rounds of the CGC Program will focus on helping communities 
break down market barriers and build capacity for ongoing sustainability 
actions. Technical assistance will be available at the capital project 
development and community levels. 

During the next year, NYSERDA will:

•  Continue to award funds on a competitive basis under Phase II for 
the implementation of specifi c projects that further the goals of 
the local sustainability plans and advance the State’s clean energy 
goals related to energy effi ciency, renewable energy, and greenhouse 
gas emission reduction.

•  Work with local communities to share successes and lessons learned so 
that others may emulate these exemplary projects.

•  Continue to align with the REDCs to assure that sustainability projects 
also address economic development opportunities within communities 
across the State.

Program PortfoliosStrategic Initiatives

The CGC Program 

aims to fundamentally 

shift energy intensive 

and environmentally 

harmful development 

patterns in communities 

to ones that are more 

sustainable.   
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Clean Energy Economy
New York State businesses are well-positioned to compete for a 
substantial share of the expanding New York State and global markets 
for clean energy technologies. The State has long been a leader in energy 
technology innovation and commercialization, with a world-class research 
infrastructure, a superior higher education system, a productive skilled 
workforce, and a growing clean energy entrepreneurial ecosystem. 

NYSERDA commissioned the NYS Clean Energy Technologies Innovation 
Metrics study to bring an informed, market-based perspective on the type of 
business climate information most critical to corporate and investor decision 
making relative to New York State’s clean energy economy. Based on focus 
groups with nearly 100 individuals, the report provides a baseline measure 
and indicators to help New York State identify strengths as well as areas to 
improve. The report grouped indicators into four areas. Specifi cs from the 
report include:  

•  In the Research and Innovation category, New York State is 1st in wind 
patents among 50 states, and 2nd nationally in all cleantech patents. New 
York State universities rank 2nd among states in research expenditures 
and 3rd in number of technology licenses and options.

•  When considering Business Environment, New York State ranks 3rd 
nationally in venture capital investment and 3rd in high-tech employment. 
New York State is also 4th in employment in green goods and services. 

•  From the perspective of Industry Development, New York State ranks 
4th in number of cleantech companies and 3rd in number of Technology 
Fast 500 companies.

•  New York State is the 3rd largest state economy, but only the 8th in 
energy consumption and almost 24 percent of the electricity generated in 
New York State is from renewable sources including hydropower.

NYSERDA has designed and implemented a series of programs to 
catalyze innovation and foster an entrepreneurial climate for business 
creation and growth of early-stage companies. The objective of these 
centers, incubators, and programs is to move clean energy technologies 
from inventions/ideas to customer relevant innovations and increase the 
likelihood of commercial and market success in New York State.

For example, Proof-of-Concept Centers established at Columbia 
University, New York University, and High Tech Rochester will accelerate 
the commercialization of innovations out of research institutions and into 
the marketplace. Six clean energy business incubators across New York 
provide ready access to mentors and service providers. Client companies 
in the incubators have raised a combined $143.8 million in private capital 
and $49.0 million in public (non-New York) funding since 2010. Quality 
management is critical to success, so the Entrepreneurs-in-Residence 
(EIR) program provides coaching to inexperienced entrepreneurs in order 
to signifi cantly increase the likelihood of success. More than $16.9 million 
of private capital and 28 strategic business partnerships have resulted from 
EIR engagements. 
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MicroGen CFO and COO Mike Perrotta 

(far right) discusses a new MEMS-based 

energy harvester with David Trauernicht, 

MicroGen’s principal scientist in their 

offi ce at High Tech Rochester.

Strategic Initiatives
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New York is a place where new cleantech 
ideas are born and nurtured as they begin 
the journey toward commercialization.

Across industry sectors, cleantech companies 
find the support, talent and capital they need 
to take root and thrive in the Empire State.

Our cleantech sector continues to deepen and 
grow into a robust, diverse statewide industry. 

New York is a state of early adopters— 
our consumers and legislators are 

driving demand for clean 
energy technology.

Business Environment

Our clecleantech sh sectortor cocoono tinunueses to do deeeeppepenn aandnd
Industry Development

NeNeww YYorkrk isis a ststtaatee oof ef eeaarlyrlyrly adadoadooptptpterererss———
Clean Energy Market

Research & Innovation

Building a Cleantech Economy in New York
Where we rank among the 50 United States.

STEM
Degrees
Awarded

Venture 
Capital

Investment

# of 
Cleantech

Companies

Six NYSERDA-Supported
Cleantech Incubators

Electric & Gas 
Energy Eff iciency 

Investment

Green Goods
& Services

Employment

State Energy
Eff iciency

Policies
Renewable

Energy
Consumption

These companies have provided 
support to nearly 100 cleantech 

startups since 2009 and have 
attracted  $101 million in mostly 

private investment through 2012.
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Patenting
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Illustration of the fi ndings of the report 

(New York State Clean Energy Technologies 
Innovation Metrics 2012) that tracks the 

development of the New York State cleantech 

industry and innovation system. 

Visit nyserda.ny.gov/tracking-cleantech  to 

learn more about the report.

Strategic Initiatives

During the next year, NYSERDA will:

•  Continue to support a robust clean energy innovation network that 
will help to identify discoveries with the greatest potential to create 
successful new clean energy businesses. 

•  Expand the existing innovation infrastructure to accelerate the success 
of clean energy technology businesses. 

•  Create online tools to guide entrepreneurs through the process of 
business formation and growth and connect them with the broader 
innovation community. 

•  Implement a communication strategy to inspire innovative thinking 
and clean energy entrepreneurship across research institutions 
in New York State. 
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Renewable Heat NY
Renewable Heat NY was announced by Governor Cuomo in his 2014 State 
of the State address as “a long-term commitment to help the high-effi ciency 
and low-emission biomass heating industry reach scale.” A multi-pronged 
10-year market development strategy is being pursued to stimulate growth 
that will position the market to take off and be sustainable over the long 
term. Over the next year, NYSERDA will initiate the effort to focus on 
providing supply chain and service network development (i.e., workforce 
development, training, and research and development), along with 
consumer incentives and fi nancing. This approach includes providing:

•  Increased installations of high-effi ciency and low-emissions, pellet-fi red, 
and advanced cord wood, heating systems.

•  A vibrant manufacturing base in New York State with suffi cient demand 
to allow for investment in automation that will help to reduce up-front 
system costs.

•  Suffi cient demand for bulk pellet fuel suppliers so they can invest in 
depots for storage and trucks for bulk delivery that will yield higher 
consumer (and potentially investor) confi dence and bring down delivered 
pellet fuel prices.

•  A net reduction in fi ne particulate matter (PM2.5) and carbon monoxide 
(CO) emissions through retirement of older ineffi cient systems and 
replacement with high-effi ciency and low-emissions heating systems, 
resulting in air quality and public health improvement in localized areas, 
entire valley communities, and perhaps regionally.

•  A well-trained heating system design and installation workforce, and 
knowledgeable energy auditors and code enforcement offi cers to ensure 
properly sized and safe installations.

•  Product certifi cation, testing, and manufacturing automation to reduce 
production costs of heating system components and emissions controls 
technologies so that direct incentives can be minimized and eliminated 
over time.

•  Animated fi nancial markets offering reasonably priced fi nancing 
alternatives to support sustainable growth of the industry absent 
direct incentives.

•  R&D support for health and safety studies and long-term monitoring and 
characterization of wood smoke in rural communities.

•  Updated building codes to refl ect implementation of advanced biomass 
heating technologies. 
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First made-in-New York residential 

wood pellet boiler by EvoWorld. 

Strategic Initiatives

“. . . a long-term 

commitment to help 

the high-effi ciency

 and low-emission 

biomass heating 

industry reach scale.” 
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Strategic Initiatives

During the next year, NYSERDA will:

•  Raise consumer awareness.

•  Develop larger-scale anchor customers to allow for bulk biomass delivery.

•  Lay the foundation for workforce training and support for product 
development, manufacturing, laboratory and fi eld testing, and 
equipment certifi cation.

•  Leverage NYSERDA’s issuance of the Biomass Heating Roadmap to 
accelerate the use of biomass for heating using the most effi cient, 
low-emission technologies. 

•  Identify high profi le demonstration projects in state and municipal 
buildings that are ideally suited for biomass conversion.

•  Challenge communities to develop clustered approaches for sustainable 
biomass heating markets through Cleaner, Greener Communities and 
develop long-term, reasonably-priced private sector fi nancing, potentially 
utilizing support from NY Green Bank. 

Add a related image here to balance page

Outside residential bulk pellet 

storage bin. This 4.5-ton unit 

has a ventilated soffi t and two 

ports for pellet delivery. 
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Funding sources include:

System Benefi ts Charge / Technology & Market 

Development (SBC/T&MD)

Focused on energy technology and market development. These funds are 
approved by the PSC and derived from an assessment on the intrastate 
sales of electricity by New York State utilities. In October 2011, the PSC 
authorized the SBC/T&MD portfolio from 2012 through 2016. Subsequent 
Orders in 2012 and 2013 added funds to the SBC/T&MD Portfolio.

System Benefi ts Charge / Energy Effi ciency Portfolio 

Standard (SBC/EEPS) 

Focused on acquiring energy effi ciency savings and helping New York State 
achieve its energy effi ciency targets. These funds are approved by the PSC 
and derived from an assessment on the intrastate sales of electricity and 
gas by New York State utilities. In October 2011, the PSC authorized SBC/
EEPS from 2012 through 2015. In 2014, the PSC has initiated a proceeding 
to examine the future of rate-payer funded programs beyond 2015 to 
support clean energy adoption. 

Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI) 

Focused on energy effi ciency, renewable energy, and carbon abatement 
projects in New York State. These funds are derived from sale of carbon 
emission allowances as set forth in 6 NYCRR Part 242 and 21 NYCRR Part 
507. The amount of revenues available is dependent on the auction prices 
for the allowances, which are variable.

Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) 

Focused on acquiring renewable energy and/or renewable energy attributes 
and helping New York State achieve its RPS target. These funds are 
approved by the PSC under various Orders and derived from an assessment 
on the intrastate sales of electricity by New York State utilities.

NY Green Bank 

Focused on accelerating clean energy deployment in New York State 
by working in partnership with the private sector to transform fi nancing 
markets. The PSC approved funding for NY Green Bank as a division of 
NYSERDA in an Order issued on December 19, 2013.The Order provided 
some initial capitalization from uncommitted SBC, EEPS, and RPS funds.  
NYSERDA has also allocated RGGI funds. NY Green Bank operates along 
the principles of a commercial investment fund and represents a new 
business model as an instrument of government policy.    

esFunding Sources

NYSERDA uses 

numerous funding 

sources to advance 

State energy goals and 

achieve its mission. 

NYSERDA strives to invest 

these funds in a manner 

that maximizes benefi ts to 

New Yorkers, fi lls critical 

gaps, and addresses the 

needs of its customers. 
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Funding Sources

Monthly Adjustment Charge 

(MAC; for Con Edison customers only)

Focused on acquiring energy effi ciency, demand reduction, and Combined 
Heat and Power to help meet a reliability need projected as a result of the 
closure of one or both units of the Indian Point Energy Center (IPEC). Funds 
are approved by the PSC and derived from an assessment on delivery of 
electricity by Con Edison. In November 2013, the PSC authorized funding 
through June 2016. Funding will be collected from ratepayers on a deferred 
basis for 10 years.

Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) 

Focused on developing energy storage technology in New York State. 
It is part of the Energy Effi ciency and Renewable Energy provisions 
in New York State regulations that implement the federal CAIR program. 
These funds are derived from sale of nitrogen oxide emission allowances 
as set forth in 6 New York Code of Rules and Regulations Parts 243 and 
244. The funds are non-recurring and regulatory uncertainty regarding the 
replacement of CAIR with successor regulations makes it unclear if future 
funds will be available.

Statutory 

Focused on energy technology development and demonstration and energy 
planning. These funds are derived from an assessment on the intrastate 
sales of gas and electricity by New York State utilities and collected by DPS 
pursuant to Section 18-A of the Public Service Law.  

Federal 

Support for a range of energy-related activities. These funds are derived 
through formula grants from U.S. DOE, competitive grants, and as 
fl ow-down funds through other state agencies. Includes funds that come 
to New York State for Superstorm Sandy relief and restoration efforts.  

Other Funds 

Includes other sources of funds provided by various sponsors used for 
specifi c purposes.   

All of these public funds are leveraged considerably with private sector 
funding through NYSERDA programs.

A number of these funding sources are currently under review. The funding 
that becomes available will drive the degree to which NYSERDA can 
accomplish the goals and objectives presented in this Strategic Plan.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Management is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the financial statements of the New 
York State Energy Research and Development Authority (the Authority), as well as all other information 
contained in the Authority’s Annual Report.  The financial statements of the Authority for the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2014 were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  Financial information contained elsewhere in the Annual Report is consistent with the financial 
statements.  The Board of the Authority adopted these financial statements and the Annual Report at a meeting 
on June 24, 2014.

The Authority maintains a system of internal controls, the objectives of which are to provide reasonable 
assurance as to the proper authorization and recording of transactions, the safeguarding of Authority assets, the 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial 
statements.  The internal control structure is subject to periodic review by management, internal audit staff and 
the independent auditors.  No internal control system can provide absolute assurance that errors and 
irregularities will not occur due to the inherent limitations of the effectiveness of internal controls; however, 
management strives to maintain a balance, recognizing that the cost of such system should not exceed the 
benefits derived. 

The Authority’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent auditors appointed by the 
Members of the Authority.  Management has made available to the independent auditors all the financial 
records and related data of the Authority, as well as providing access to all the minutes of the meetings of the 
Board and its standing committees.  The independent auditors periodically meet directly with the Audit and 
Finance Committee of the Board, which is comprised of Members who are not employees of the Authority.

The independent audit included obtaining an understanding of the internal control structure, tests of 
accounting records, and other procedures which the independent auditors considered necessary in order to 
express an opinion as to the fairness of the presentation of the financial statements.  No material weaknesses in 
internal control or any condition of non-compliance with applicable laws, regulations or policy were noted by 
the independent auditors.  The unmodified independent auditors’ report attests that the financial statements are 
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

John B. Rhodes  
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

 Jeffrey J. Pitkin 
Treasurer and  
Chief Financial Officer 



 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Members of the Authority 
New York State Energy Research and Development Authority: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the New York State Energy 
Research and Development Authority (a component unit of the State of New York) (the Authority) as of 
and for the year ended March 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the New York State Energy Research and Development 

 

 
 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, 
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

KPMG LLP 
515 Broadway 
Albany, NY 12207-2974 
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Authorit y as of March 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

The Responsibility for Financial Reporting section is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 26, 2014 on 
our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Albany, New York 
June 26, 2014 



New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended March 31, 2014 

Unaudited 

 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of New York State Energy Research and Development 
Authority’s (NYSERDA) financial performance provides an overview of NYSERDA’s financial activities for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2014. The information contained in the MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the information 
presented as part of NYSERDA’s basic financial statements as presented. Following this MD&A are the basic financial 
statements of NYSERDA with the notes thereto that are essential to a full understanding of the data contained in the 
financial statements. NYSERDA’s basic financial statements have the following components: (1) government-wide financial 
statements; (2) governmental fund financial statements; (3) proprietary fund financial statements; (4) fiduciary fund 
statements; and (5) notes to the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of NYSERDA’s finances 
in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of NYSERDA’s 
assets and liabilities, and the difference between the two is reported as net position. The Statement of Activities presents 
information showing how NYSERDA’s net position changed during each fiscal year. All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods, or which already resulted in cash flows in a prior fiscal period. The government-wide financial statements present 
information about NYSERDA as a whole. All of the activities of NYSERDA are considered to be governmental activities, 
with the exception of the activities of NY Green Bank which are considered business-type activities.   
 
Governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of resources, as well as on balances of 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, the reader may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. The 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.  
 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide information for business-type activities where NYSERDA charges fees to 
customers to recover costs of providing services. The NY Green Bank is reported as a Proprietary Fund.  The Proprietary 
Fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a 
Statement of Cash Flows.     
 
The fiduciary financial statements report assets held by NYSERDA in a fiduciary capacity for others, and consist of a 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. These funds are not reflected in the 
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support NYSERDA’s 
programs.  
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the 
information provided in the government-wide, governmental fund, and proprietary fund financial statements. 
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New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended March 31, 2014 

Unaudited 

 
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
The following condensed financial information is presented from NYSERDA’s government-wide financial statements: 
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(Amounts in thousands) 
 
 
 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

 
Total 

 
Total 

 
 

Summary of Net Position March 31, March 31, 
2014 2014 

March 31, 
2014 

March 31, 
2013 

% Change 
2014-2013 

Cash and investments 
Capital assets 
Other assets 

$1,205,669 207,004 
12,980 - 
178,051 11,212 

1,412,673 
12,980 
189,263 

1,081,170 
12,883 
142,083 

30.7% 
0.8% 
33.2% 

   Total assets 1,396,700 218,216 1,614,916 1,236,136 30.6% 

Long-term liabilities 
Other liabilities 

31,888 - 
98,620 - 

31,888 
98,620 

6,432 
83,868 

395.8% 
17.6% 

   Total liabilities 130,508 - 130,508 90,300 44.5% 

Net Position:      
Unrestricted 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
         Total Net Position 

3,944                       - 
12,918                       - 

1,249,330           218,216 

3,944 
       12,918 
1,467,546 

3,568 
12,784 

1,129,484 

10.6% 
1.1% 
29.9% 

$1,266,192 218,216 1,484,408 1,145,836 29.5% 

 
Total assets increased $378.8 million (30.6%). Cash and investments increased $331.5 million (30.7%) primarily due to 
revenues exceeding expenses in the Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS), Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI), and 
NY Green Bank programs. Other assets increased $47.2 million (33.2%) principally due to a $17.5 million increase in the 
accrued receivable for Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard (EEPS) program expenses in excess of collections and transfers, 
a $17.0 million increase in loans outstanding through NY Green  Jobs-Green New York program, and an $11.2 million 
accrual for funds due to NY Green  Bank from a utility pursuant to a Public Service Commission (PSC) Order. 
 
Total liabilities increased $40.2 million (44.5%). Long-term liabilities increased $25.5 million (395.8%) primarily due to a 
$24.3 million bond issuance under NY Green Jobs-Green NY loan program, and from an increase in compensated absence 
balances due to actuarial changes in mortality rates. Other liabilities increased $14.8 million (17.6%) primarily due to an 
increase in accrued liabilities resulting from higher estimates of outstanding invoices at March 31, 2014.   
 
Net position, the difference between NYSERDA’s assets and its liabilities, increased by 29.5% from $1,145.8 million to 
$1,484.4 million. Restricted net position (unexpended funds received for particular specified programmatic purposes) 
increased 29.9% to $1,467.5 million. Unrestricted net position, which can be used to finance operations without constraints 
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements, increased 10.6%, to $3.9 million.  
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(Amounts in thousands)  

 Governmental Business-type    
Activities Activities  Total Total 

  March 31,  March 31, March 31, MMarch 31, % Change 
Summary of Changes in Net Position 2014 2014 2014 2013 2014-2013 
Program Revenues:      
    State appropriations $33,330 - $33,330 29,311 13.7% 
    System Benefits Charge  297,605 90,000 387,605 262,046 47.9% 
    Renewable Portfolio Standard 253,344 - 253,344 213,228 18.8% 
    Allowance proceeds 169,351 - 169,351 88,447 91.5% 
    Third-party reimbursements 31,850 - 31,850 14,821 114.9% 
    Federal grants 11,757  11,757 37,234 -68.4% 
    Interest subsidy 336 - 336 - 100.0% 
    Loan interest 1,154 - 1,154 576 100.5% 
    Investment income 2,687 219 2,906 6,795 -57.2% 
    Other program revenue  2,722 - 2,722 6,835 -60.2% 
      Total Revenues 804,136 90,219 894,355 659,293 35.7% 
Expenses:      
   Salaries and benefits 42,449 427 42,876 38,433 11.6% 
   Program expenditures 464,638 - 464,638 427,896 8.6% 
   Other operating costs 7,867 71 7,938 5,587 42.1% 
   Depreciation 2,067 19 2,086 1,779 17.2% 
   NY State assessments 12,857 13 12,870 12,554 2.5% 
   Interest 375 - 375 - 100.0% 
   Payment to NYS 25,000 - 25,000 - 100.0% 
      Total Expenses 555,253 530 555,783 486,249 14.3% 
Increase in Net Position before transfers 248,883 89,689 338,572 173,044 95.7% 
Transfers (128,527) 128,527 - - 100.0% 
Change in net position $120,356 218,216 338,572 173,044 95.7% 

 
 

 
Total Revenue increased 35.7% from $6559.3 million to $894.4 million. State appropriation revenuee increased $4.0 million 
(13.7%) primarily as a result of $10.0 milllion in new funding for the Strategic Fuel Reserve prograam, offset in part by a 
reduction for the West Valley program, ssince a portion of costs were funded from prior year reveenues. System Benefits 
Charge revenue increased $125.6 million (4(47.9%) principally due to $90 million provided by utility coompanies pursuant to a 
PSC Order for a portion of the initial caapitalization of the NY Green Bank. Additionally, an inccrease of $17.5 million 
occurred in the accrued revenues for Eneergy Efficiency Portfolio Standard program expenses in exxcess of collections and 
transfers.  Renewable Portfolio Standard rrevenue increased $40.1 million (18.8%) as a result of schedduled increases in utility 
assessment collections transferred to NYYSERDA. Allowance proceeds increased by $80.9 millionn (91.5%) due to both 
higher auction clearing prices for allowannces being sold, and the sale of approximately 37% more allowances than in the 

6 

 

lion in new funding for the Strategic Fuel Reserve program, offset in part by 
ince a portion of costs were funded from prior year revenues. 
7.9
pitalization of the NY Green Bank.
rgy Efficiency Portfol
evenue increased $
SERDA
ces being sold

Revenues
System State 
Benefits appropriation
Charge 3.7%
43.3%

Allowance 
Proceeds Other
18.9% 0.5%

Third-party 
funding
3.7%

Federal grants
1.3%

Investment 
income
0.3%

Renewable 
Portfolio 
Standard
28.3%

Expenses
Program 

expenditures
83.6%

DepreciationInterest
0.4%0.1%  

Salaries & 
benefits
7.7%

Payment to 
NYS
4.5%

NYS 
assessments

2.3%

Other 
operating costs

1.4%

New York St

(A C

 
arch 31,

 

6  
$10.0 mi m, offset in part by 

nues. 
million mpanies pursuant to a 

for a portion of the initial c rease of $17.5 million
in the accrued revenues for En cess of collections and 
Renewable Portfolio Standard uled increases in utility 

assessment collections transferred to N  (
allowa allowances

State appropriation revenu
$10.0 million in new funding for the Strategic Fuel Reserve progr

since a portion of costs were funded from prior year rev
principally due to $90 million provided by utility c

Additionally, an in
io Standard program expenses in e

%) as a result of sche
millio

% more 



New York State Energy Research and Development Authority 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis  

For the Year Ended March 31, 2014 

Unaudited 

 
prior fiscal year. Third-party reimbursements increased by $17.0 million (114.9%), principally related to new funding of 
$20.0 million from a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission settlement with a third-party, to be used to fund a smart grid 
program. Federal grants revenue decreased by $25.5 million (-68.4%) primarily due to the winding down of certain American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act grants. Interest subsidy represents a payment from the IRS of a portion of the interest 
expense paid for bonds issued in August 2013 to finance residential energy efficiency loans, which were issued as Qualified 
Energy Conservation Bonds. Loan interest increased $0.6 million (100.5%) as a result of additional loans outstanding. Total 
investment income decreased by $3.9 million (-57.2%) primarily due to an approximately $5.1 million change in the market 
value of investments held, partially offset by an increase in investment income from higher average balances of investments 
held. Other Program Revenues decreased by $4.1 million (-60.2%) primarily due to the loss of third-party contributions 
totaling $3.2 million from the New York Power Authority and the Long Island Power Authority.  
 
Total Expenses increased 14.3% from $486.2 million to $555.8 million. Salaries and benefits increased $4.4 million (11.6%), 
principally due to an increase in full-time equivalent employees, and from an increase in the cost of compensated absences 
resulting from actuarial changes in life expectancy and an increase in the number of hours accrued. Program Expenditures 
increased $36.7 million (8.6%) primarily due to higher expenditures in the RPS program. Other Operating Costs increased 
$2.4 million (42.1%) primarily from information technology consulting services to support the development of several 
corporate technology initiatives. NY State Assessments increased by $0.3 million (2.5%) over the prior year due to an 
increase in NYSERDA’s annual assessment. Payment to NYS represents a $25 million disbursement made to NYS under 
the RGGI program pursuant to a provision of the New York State fiscal year 2013-14 enacted budget. 
 
Transfers from Governmental activities to Business-type activities represents funds transferred as part of the initial 
capitalization of the NY Green Bank as further discussed in the Fund analysis below.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS 
Total fund balances for the Governmental Funds increased from $1,139.4 million to $1,285.1 million as further described 
below:   

• The New York Energy $mart fund balance, which accounts for the New York Energy $martSM Program funded 
through the System Benefits Charge, decreased from $182.4 million to $156.0 million due to expenditure of funds as 
the program winds down, as well as to two transfers totaling $22.7 million (to NY Green Bank and EEPS), as directed 
by Public Service Commission (PSC) Orders.  

• The Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard fund balance increased from $101.1 million to $128.8 million principally due 
to scheduled collections in excess of expenses.  The increase was partially offset due to a transfer of $3.5 million to NY 
Green Bank as directed by a PSC Order. 

• The Technology & Market Development Portfolio fund balance increased from $168.6 million to $196.7 million and 
reflects the second full fiscal year of scheduled collections, which exceeded expenditures.  

• The Renewable Portfolio Standard fund balance increased from $338.1 million to $393.3 million principally as a result 
of funds received from scheduled collections, in excess of expenditures. The increase was partially offset due to a 
transfer of $50.0 million to NY Green Bank as directed by a PSC Order.  

• The RGGI fund balance increased from $168.1 million to $208.6 million principally as a net result of greater than 
anticipated additional allowance proceeds collected but not yet spent, offset in part by transfers to NY Green  Bank of 
$52.9 million.  

• The Other Programs fund balance increased from $181.0 million to $201.8 million principally as a result of the inflow 
of $24.3 million in funds from the issuance of Residential Energy Efficiency Financing Revenue bonds.  

 
Total net position for the Proprietary Fund was $218.2 million at March 31, 2014 as described below:   

• NY Green Bank was created in 2013, and was funded by a December 2013 Order of the PSC reallocating and 
repurposing $165.6 million in uncommitted utility EEPSI funds, uncommitted NYSERDA Systems Benefit Charge, 
Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard, and Renewable Portfolio Standard funds and from a $52.9 million NYSERDA 
RGGI contribution. Minimal other revenues were earned or expenses incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2014 for this start-up program. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
NYSERDA maintains land, buildings, and furniture and equipment in various locations for its corporate purposes. Total 
capital assets as of March 31, 2014, were $13.0 million, net of accumulated depreciation. Capital asset additions for the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2014, were approximately $2.2 million, primarily for leasehold improvements and furniture at a new 
location for the NYC office, technology equipment upgrades, and land improvements at STEP. 
 
Total long-term liabilities increased from $6.4 million to $31.9 million primarily due to $24.3 million Residential Energy 
Efficiency Financing Revenue bonds issued in August 2013. A small portion of the overall increase was from an increase in 
compensated absence balances primarily due to changes in mortality estimates. 
   
NYSERDA also issues tax-exempt bonds on a conduit basis on behalf of utility companies to finance certain eligible 
projects. As of March 31, 2014, approximately $3.4 billion of bonds are outstanding. These bonds are non-recourse bonds 
and as such are not included in NYSERDA’s financial statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS  
 
A substantial portion of NYSERDA’s annual revenues are derived from sources, whose collection schedules, pursuant to 
Orders of the PSC, are currently scheduled to expire, unless extended, as follows: Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard 
funds in December 2018, Technology and Market Development Portfolio funds in December 2017, and Renewable 
Portfolio Standard funds in October 2024.  
 
On behalf of the State, NYSERDA manages the Western New York Nuclear Service Center in West Valley, New York, the 
site of a former plant for reprocessing used nuclear fuel. Depending upon the clean-up options selected and agreement on 
cost sharing with the federal government, these costs could be substantial. It is anticipated that New York State’s share of 
future costs for the West Valley site will be provided by New York State to NYSERDA and will not impact NYSERDA’s 
current funding. As permitted by GASB 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, no liability has 
been recorded in NYSERDA’s financial statements for this contingency due to the expected recoveries from New York 
State.  
 
NYSERDA’s programs are impacted by a number of factors including, but not limited to, general economic conditions, 
energy prices, energy system reliability, and energy technology advancements. Revenues in the Regional Greenhouse Gas 
Initiative program in particular can be highly sensitive to some of the aforementioned factors.  
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BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
The following table summarizes actual revenues and expenses, as reported in the Statement of Activities, for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2014, in comparison to amounts included in the final Budget approved by NYSERDA’s Board: 
 

      (Amount in thousands) 
 Actuals    
 Governmental Business-type   Budget  

Activities Activities Total Total Variance 
Revenues:       
   State appropriations  33,330 - $33,330  39,639 (6,309) 
   System Benefits Charge 297,605 90,000 387,605  288,153 99,452 
   Renewable Portfolio 253,344 - 253,344  253,344 - 
Standard 
   Allowance proceeds 169,351 - 169,351  94,375 74,976 
   Third-party contributions - - -  1,600 (1,600) 
   Third-party 31,850 - 31,850  119,395 (87,545) 
reimbursements  
   Federal grants  11,757 - 11,757  28,867 (17,110) 
   Interest subsidy  336 - 336  325 11 
   Project repayments   998 - 998  789 209 
   Rentals from leases  1,208 - 1,208  1,224 (16) 
   Fees and other income 516 - 516  2,219 (1,703) 
   Loan interest 1,154 - 1,154  1,610 (456) 
   Investment income 2,687 219 2,906  10,238 (7,332) 
      Total Revenues 804,136 90,219 894,355  841,778 52,577 
Expenses:       
   Salaries and benefits 42,449 427 42,876  44,197 (1,321) 
   Program expenditures 464,638 - 464,638  759,649 (295,011) 
   Other operating costs 7,867 71 7,938  9,954 (2,016) 
   Depreciation 2,067 19 2,086  1,828 258 
   NY State Assessments 12,857 13 12,870  13,827 (957) 
   Interest  375 - 375  386 (11) 
   Payment to NYS 25,000 - 25,000  - 25,000 
      Total Expenses 555,253 530 555,783  829,841 (274,058) 
Excess 248,883 89,689 338,572  11,937 326,635 
Revenues/(Expenses) 
Net Position, beginning of 1,145,836 - 1,145,836  1,145,836 - 
year 
Transfers (128,527) 128,527 -  - - 
Net Position, end of year      - 
   Net investments in capital 12,918 - 12,918  13,208 (290) 
assets 
   Restricted for specific 1,249,330 218,216 1,467,546  1,141,565 325,981 
programs 
   Unrestricted  3,944 - 3,944  3,000 944 
Total Net Position, end of $1,266,192 218,216 $1,484,408  $1,157,773 326,635 
year 
 
 
Total revenues were approximately $52.6 million, or 6.2% higher than Budget. State appropriation revenues were less than 
budgeted principally due to the level of reimbursable expenditures for certain programs funded through State re-
appropriations. System Benefits Charge collections were higher than anticipated since the budget did not attempt to estimate 
the change in the accrual of revenues for expenses in excess of deferred collections for the Energy Efficiency Portfolio 
Standard program. Allowance auction proceeds were greater than budget due principally to significantly higher clearing 
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prices for allowances sold than had been estimated. Third-party contributions anticipated from the New York Power 
Authority to partially fund Energy Research and Development program activities did not materialize as an agreement on the 
contribution was not reached between the parties. Federal grants revenue was lower than budget due to the level of actual 
reimbursable expenditures being less than anticipated, principally for the two Fuel NY programs initiated during the fiscal 
year. Fees and other income were lower than budget principally due to cancellation of an anticipated sale of real property at 
STEP, as well as fees anticipated from a utility bond re-financing which did not occur. Investment income was lower than 
budget principally due to a $5.1 million decrease in the fair value of investments held, which was not budgeted. Additionally, 
despite higher average investment balances than budgeted, lower investment yields than anticipated resulted in lower income 
than budget.  
 
Total expenses were approximately $274.1 million, or 33.0%, below the approved Budget. Salaries and benefits were lower 
than anticipated principally due to vacancies not filled. Fringe benefit costs were over budget primarily due to greater than 
expected accrued expenses for compensated absences, primarily due to a change in actuarial assumptions. Program 
expenditures were less than budgeted primarily due to timing of anticipated expenditures for several programs. Other 
Operating Costs were less than budgeted primarily due to lower than expected costs incurred for various information 
technology consultant services and travel costs, as well as timing differences. NY State Assessments was higher than 
budgeted due to an unanticipated increase of $316,000 in the annual assessments.      
 
CONTACT FOR AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
 
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of NYSERDA for interested parties. Questions 
concerning any information within this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Jeffrey J. Pitkin, 
Treasurer, 17 Columbia Circle, Albany NY 12203. 
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2014

(with comparative totals for March 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

March 31, March 31,

2014 2013

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Total

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and investments $268,269 92,872  361,141 235,025

New York State receivable  7,361 -  7,361 5,826

Third-party billings receivable 124,339 11,212  135,551  107,328

Interest receivable on loans 122 -  122  37

Loans receivable due within one year  3,586 -  3,586 2,274 

Prepaid expense 540 -  540 242

Total current assets 404,217 104,084 508,301 350,732

Noncurrent assets:

Investments 937,400 114,132  1,051,532  846,145
Loans receivable- long term 42,103 - 42,103  26,376
Capital assets, net of depreciation 12,980 - 12,980 12,883 

Total noncurrent assets 992,484 114,132  1,106,615  885,404

Total assets           1,396,700  218,216 1,614,916 1,236,136

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Long-term liabilities due within one year 4,822 - 4,822 2,540 

Accounts payable 20,137 - 20,137  20,607
Con Edison payable 10,932 - 10,932 8,700 

Accrued liabilities  65,496 -  65,496 53,513 

Deferred revenue 2,055 - 2,055 1,048 

Total current liabilities 103,442 -  103,442  86,408
Noncurrent liabilities:

Bonds Payable 22,105 - 22,105 - 

Other long-term liabilities  4,961 -  4,961 3,892 

Total long tem liabilities  27,066 -  27,066 3,892 

Total liabilities 130,508 -  130,508 90,300 

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets 12,918 - 12,918 12,784 

Restricted for specific programs           1,249,330  218,216  1,467,546  1,129,484

Unrestricted

Total net position

3,944 

$1,266,192
- 3,944  3,568

 218,216  1,484,408  1,145,836

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Activities

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(with summarized comparative totals for March 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

Governmental Activities

Functions/Programs

Energy Technology

 Efficiency and Market Renewable Energy

New York Portfolio Development Portfolio Research & Energy

Energy $mart Standard Portfolio Standard Development RGGI GJGNY Analysis

EXPENSES:

Salaries and benefits $810          13,061            6,930            4,145             4,115            2,413         1,378         3,260 

Program expenditures                42,700        148,562          23,687        140,133             9,640          47,640       13,791           (110) 

Other operating costs                     126            2,207            1,158            1,106               642              385            199            655 

Depreciation                       34              552              293              175               174              102              58            138 

NY State Assessments                  1,155            3,998              740            3,590               367            1,131            400              98 

Interest                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -            375                - 

Payment to NYS                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -          25,000                -                - 

Total expenses                 44,825         168,380           32,808         149,149            14,938           76,671        16,201          4,041

REVENUES:

Operating grants and contributions

State appropriations                         -                   -                   -                   -           12,892                   -                -         4,009 

System Benefits Charge                40,891        196,664          60,050                   -                    -                   -                -                - 

Renewable Portfolio Standard                         -                   -                   -        253,344                    -                   -                -                - 

Allowance proceeds                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -        169,351                -                - 

Third-party contributions                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                -                - 

Third-party reimbursements                       61            2,070                   -                   -                 81                   -                -                - 

Federal grants                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                -              24 

Interest subsidy                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -            336                - 

Charges for  Services

Project repayments                         -                   -                   -                   -               909                   -                -                - 

Rentals from leases                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                -                - 

Fees and other income                         -                44                20                   -                    -                   -                -                - 

Loan interest                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -         1,154                - 

Other

System Benefits Charge                         -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   -                -                - 

Investment income                     257               (70)              731              871                (60)              597            263                - 

Total revenues                41,209        198,708          60,801        254,215           13,822        169,948         1,753         4,033 

Net (Expense) Revenue and change in 
net position ($3,616)           30,328           27,993         105,066            (1,116)           93,277       (14,448)               (8) 

Transfers

     Change in net position

Net position-beginning of period

Net position-end of period

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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March 31, March 31,

Business-type 2014 2013
Governmental Activities Activities Total Total

Functions/Programs (cont'd)

GreenWest Utility Bond

Valley STEP Financing Other Total Bank

EXPENSES:

Salaries and benefits             2,122 404 36            3,775           42,449  427           42,876           38,433

Program expenditures            9,865 - -           28,730         464,638  -         464,638         427,896
Other operating costs 448 360 5 576            7,867  71            7,938            5,587 

Depreciation 98  281  2 160             2,067  19             2,086            1,779 

NY State Assessments 313  26 1            1,038           12,857  13           12,870           12,554
Interest - - - - 375 - 375  -

Payment to NYS - - - -           25,000 -           25,000  -

Total expenses           12,846            1,071  44           34,279         555,253  530         555,783         486,249

REVENUES:

Operating grants and contributions

State appropriations            5,990 - -          10,439           33,330  -           33,330           29,311
System Benefits Charge - - - -         297,605  -         297,605         262,046
Renewable Portfolio Standard - - - -         253,344  -         253,344         213,228
Allowance proceeds - - - -         169,351  -         169,351           88,447

Third-party contributions - - - -  -  -  -             3,200
Third-party reimbursements             2,159 - -          27,479           31,850  -           31,850           14,821
Federal grants - - -          11,733           11,757  -           11,757           37,234
Interest subsidy - - - -  336  -  336  -

Charges for  Services

Project repayments - - - 89  998  -  998  765

Rentals from leases -  208 -            1,000             1,208  -             1,208             1,280
Fees and other income - - 450  2  516  -  516            1,590 

Loan interest - - - -            1,154  -            1,154  576

Other

System Benefits Charge - - - -  -           90,000  -  -

Investment income - - - 98             2,687  219             2,906            6,795 

Total revenues            8,149  208 450          50,840        804,136           90,219        894,355         659,293
Net (Expense) Revenue and change in 
net position           (4,697)  (863)  406           16,561         248,883           89,689         338,572         173,044

Transfers        (128,527)         128,527  -  -

     Change in net position         120,356         218,216         338,572         173,044

Net position-beginning of period      1,145,836  -      1,145,836         972,792
Net position-end of period

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

$1,266,192         218,216      1,484,408      1,145,836
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

March 31, 2014

(with summarized comparative totals for March 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

Energy

New York Efficiency Technology Renewable Total Total

Energy Portfolio & Market Portfolio March 31, March 31,

        $mart Standard Development    Standard RGGI Other

ASSETS:

2014 2013

Cash and investments $166,270 33,384            196,938          413,860          220,036           175,181 1,205,669 1,081,170

Receivables:

New York State                    -                    -                1,400             1,000                    -               4,961                   7,361               5,826 

Third-party billings             1,152          114,620                3,907                    -                    -               4,660               124,339            107,328 

Interest on loans                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -                 122                      122                    37 

Loans                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -             45,689                 45,689             28,650 

Prepaid expense                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -                 540                      540                  242 

Due from other funds                    -             1,032                   239                105                  11                 385                   1,772               3,785 

Total assets $167,422          149,036            202,484          414,965          220,047           231,538            1,385,491         1,227,038 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $4,673             4,130                1,100             4,993                851               4,390                 20,137             20,607 

Con Edison payable                    -                    -                       -                    -             5,896               5,036                 10,932               8,700 

Accrued liabilities             4,936           16,085                3,336           16,683             4,746             19,710                 65,496             53,513 

Due to other funds             1,785                    -                       -                    -                    -                      -                   1,785               3,785 

Deferred revenue                    -                    -                1,400                    -                    -                 655                   2,055               1,048 

Total liabilities           11,394           20,215                5,836           21,676           11,493             29,791               100,405             87,653 

Fund Balances:

    Nonspendable-not in spendable form                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -                 540                      540                  242 

Restricted          156,028          128,821            196,648          393,289          208,554           199,378            1,282,718         1,138,209 

Assigned                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -                 169                      169                  558 

Unassigned                    -                    -                       -                    -                    -               1,660                   1,660                  376 

Total fund balances          156,028          128,821            196,648          393,289          208,554           201,747            1,285,087         1,139,385 

Total liabilities and fund balances $167,422 149,036            202,484          414,965          220,047           231,538            1,385,491         1,227,038 

Following is a reconciliation of amounts reported differently in the Statement of Net Position:

   Total fund balances 1,285,087 1,139,385

   Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 

      therefore are not reported in the funds 12,980 12,883

   Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

      and therefore are not reported in the funds (31,875) (6,432)

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

$1,266,192 1,145,836
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

       

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(with summarized comparative totals for March 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

Energy Technology

New York Efficiency and Market Renewable Total Total

Energy Portfolio Development Portfolio Other March 31, March 31,

        $mart   Standard        Portfolio     Standard RGGI Funds 2014 2013

REVENUES:

State appropriations $  -                      -                      -                   -                      -             33,330                    33,330             29,311 

System Benefits Charge              40,891            196,664             60,050                   -                      -                     -                  297,605            262,046

Renewable Portfolio Standard                      -                      -                      -         253,344                      -                     -                  253,344            213,228

Allowance proceeds                      -                      -                      -                   -            169,351                     -                  169,351             88,447 

Third-party contributions                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                     -                            -               3,200

Third-party reimbursements                    61               2,070                      -                   -                      -             29,719                    31,850             14,821 

Federal grants                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -             11,757                    11,757             37,234 

Interest subsidy                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                 336                        336                      -

Project repayments                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                 998                        998                  765

Rentals from leases                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -               1,208                     1,208               1,280

Fees and other income                      -                    44                    20                   -                      -                 452                        516               1,590

Loan interest                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -               1,154                     1,154                      -

Investment income                  257                  (70)                  731               871                  597                 301                     2,687               7,371

Total revenue 41,209            198,708             60,801         254,215            169,948             79,255                  804,136            659,293

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

New York Energy $mart              44,769                      -                      -                   -                      -                     -                    44,769             69,071 

Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard                      -            167,476                      -                   -                      -                     -                  167,476            148,653

Technology and Market Development Portfolio                      -                      -             32,328                   -                      -                     -                    32,328             15,276 

Renewable Portfolio Standard                      -                      -                      -         148,862                      -                     -                  148,862            114,102

Energy Research and Development                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -             14,654                    14,654             16,391 

RGGI                      -                      -                      -                   -             76,504                     -                    76,504             33,197 

GJGNY                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -             14,712                    14,712             16,338 

Energy Analysis                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -               3,815                     3,815               4,180

West Valley                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -             12,690                    12,690             13,314 

STEP                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                 779                        779                  923

Utility Bond Financing                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                   42                          42                  978

Other                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -             34,018                    34,018             52,193 

Debt Service:                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                     -                            -                      -

Principal                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                     -                            -                      -

Interest                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -                 375                        375                      -

Bond issuance costs                      -                      -                      -                   -                      -               1,019                     1,019                      -

Capital outlay                    34                  543                  288               172                  100               1,027                     2,164               1,418

Total expenditures              44,803            168,019             32,616         149,034             76,604             83,131                  554,207            486,034

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Residential Energy Efficiency bonds issued                      -                      -                      -                   -                      - 24,300 24,300                      -

Operating transfers, net             (22,814)              (3,016)                  (96)          (50,000)            (52,927)                 326                 (128,527)                      -

Net change in fund balances (26,408) 27,673 28,089 55,181 40,417 20,750 145,702           173,259 

Fund balances, beginning of period           182,436           101,148           168,559        338,108           168,137          180,997 1,139,385 966,126

Fund balances, end of period $156,028 128,821 196,648 393,289 208,554 201,747 1,285,087 1,139,385

Following is a reconciliation of amounts reported differently in the Statement of Activities:

   Net change in fund balances                  145,702            173,259

   Capitalization and depreciation of capital outlays, rather than recording as an expenditure                          97                 (505)

   Expenses for compensated absences in the Statement of Activities do not require the use

       of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds                    (1,182)                 (185)

   Bonds proceeds are a current financial resource in the governmental funds, but are not

       reported as revenues in the Statement of Activities                  (24,300)                      -

   Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces 

     long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position                          37                  475

Change in net position of governmental activities                 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

 120,356            173,044
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

March 31, 2014

(Amounts in thousands)

NY Green

Bank

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and investments $92,872
Third-party billings receivable  11,212

Total current assets 104,084 

Non-current assets:

     Investments 114,132 

Total non-current assets 114,132 

Total assets 218,216 

NET POSITION:

Net position restricted for specific programs $218,216

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended March 31, 2014

(Amounts in thousands)

NY Green

Bank

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and benefits $427

Other operating costs  90
NY State Assessments  13

530   Total operating expenses

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:

Investment income  219
System Benefits Charge 90,000

90,219   Total non-operating revenues

Transfers in            128,527 

218,216Change in net position

Net position, beginning of period

Net position, end of period

- 

$218,216

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the year ended March 31, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

NY Green

Bank

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Payments to employees & employee benefit providers ($427)
Payments to suppliers  (90)
Payments to NYS  (13)

Net cash used in operating activities  (530)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Ssytem Benefits Charge  78,788
Transfers from other funds  128,527

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities  207,315

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments  (204,895)
Net cash used in investing activities  (204,895)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:  1,890
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  -

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $1,890

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED IN 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating loss ($530)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities  -

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

($530)
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

March 31, 2014 (except for Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund which is as of December 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

OPEB

Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS:

Cash and investments $29,125 $31,693

LLRW assessment billings receivable -              2,540 

Total assets $29,125 $34,233

LIABILITIES:

Accrued expenses $12            $ -  

Payable to New York State                          -                703 

LLRW escrow funds                          -              4,783 

Perpetual care of nuclear waste                          -            28,744 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission                          -                    3 

Total liabilities                       12 $34,233

NET POSITION:

Held in trust for other postemployment 

benefits $29,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the year ended December 31, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

OPEB

ADDITIONS: Trust Fund

Employer contributions $3,585

Investment income:

Dividend income                         612

Net change in fair value of investments                      2,542

3,154Total investment income

Less investment management expenses (10)

3,144

6,729

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits                         707

Trustee management fees                            5 

Audit fees                            8 

                        720

                     6,009

Total deductions

Net change in net position

Net position

Net position-beginning of period

Net position-end of period

                   23,104

$29,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

(1) GENERAL 

The New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) is a public benefit corporation 
established in 1975 pursuant to Title 9 of Article 8 of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York (the 
State). NYSERDA is included in the State's basic financial statements as a discretely presented component unit. 
NYSERDA's major functions and programs are summarized below.  

New York Energy $martSM program 
Pursuant to Orders of the State Public Service Commission (PSC), NYSERDA administers public benefit 
programs funded by a System Benefits Charge (SBC) on consumers of electricity sold in the State. The Orders 
provided funding for program activities committed through December 31, 2011, although collections continued 
until January 2014 after a period of deferral. NYSERDA is authorized to administer committed program funds 
until  fully expended. The program, named the New York Energy $martSM program, is designed to support certain 
public benefit programs, including energy efficiency, research and development, environmental protection, and 
low-income programs.  

Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard 
Pursuant to a June 2008 and subsequent Orders, the PSC authorized an Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard, 
which provided additional SBC funding for certain energy efficiency programs for program activities committed 
through December 31, 2011, but deferred certain collections until January 2015. NYSERDA is authorized to 
administer committed program funds until fully expended. In October 2011, the PSC authorized additional energy 
efficiency programs from January 1, 2012, through December 2015, with collections for program funding 
continuing through December 2018.  

Technology and Market Development Portfolio 
Pursuant to an October 2011 PSC Order, the Technology and Market Development Portfolio was established 
with continued funding from the SBC for program activities through December 31, 2016, and with program 
funding collections scheduled through December 2017.  The portfolio’s mission is to test, develop, and introduce 
new technologies, strategies, and practices that build the statewide market infrastructure to reliably deliver clean 
energy to New Yorkers.  

Renewable Portfolio Standard 
Pursuant to a September 2004 and subsequent Orders, the PSC adopted a policy of increasing the percentage of 
electricity used by retail consumers in New York State, that is derived from renewable resources to at least 30 
percent by 2015. The PSC adopted a Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) that sets annual, incremental, renewable 
energy targets for the years 2006 through 2015; requires the use of financial incentives to encourage the 
development and operation of renewable generation facilities; and adopts a central procurement model to be 
administered by NYSERDA. It is funded with a non-bypassable wires charge on certain customers of each of the 
State’s investor-owned utilities scheduled through October 2024. 

Energy Research and Development  
The goals of this program are to promote energy efficiency, encourage economic development, expand the use of 
New York State's indigenous and renewable energy resources, and reduce or mitigate adverse environmental 
effects associated with energy production and use. Base funding for the program comes from State appropriations 
that are financed by an assessment on the intrastate gas and electricity sales of the State's investor-owned utilities. 

Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative (RGGI) 

The Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative, or RGGI, is an agreement among nine Northeastern and Mid-Atlantic 

States to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from power plants. The RGGI states (Participating States) have 

committed to cap and then reduce the amount of carbon dioxide that certain power plants are allowed to emit, 

limiting the region’s total contribution to atmospheric greenhouse gas levels. The Participating States have agreed 

to implement RGGI through a regional cap-and-trade program whereby the Participating States have agreed to 

auction annual regional emissions. Rules and regulations promulgated by the NYS Department of Environmental 
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

Conservation (DEC) call for NYSERDA to administer periodic auctions for annual emissions. Pursuant to these 

regulations, the proceeds will be used by NYSERDA to administer energy efficiency, renewable energy, and/or 

innovative carbon abatement programs, and to cover the costs to administer such programs.  

Green Jobs-Green New York (GJGNY) 

GJGNY is a statewide program created by legislation enacted in October 2009 to promote energy efficiency 

retrofits in residential, multifamily, small business and not-for-profit buildings, and authorizes NYSERDA to 

establish innovative financing approaches through revolving loan funds to finance such projects. The program will 

also support sustainable community development and create opportunities for green jobs. The legislation funded 

the program with $112 million from RGGI auction proceeds and restricts the use of interest earnings and 

revolving loan proceeds for additional programmatic spending.  

Energy Analysis 
Through this program, NYSERDA provides objective and credible analyses of energy issues to various 
stakeholders. The program also includes activities for energy-related emergency planning and response, and 
support for State energy planning. These program activities are funded primarily by a State assessment on the 
intrastate gas and electricity sales of the State's investor-owned utilities. 

Furthermore, Energy Analysis staff provide oversight activities pursuant to the State Low-Level Radioactive Waste 
(LLRW) Management Act of 1986, whereby NYSERDA is responsible for ultimately constructing and operating 
the State’s LLRW disposal facilities, collecting information, and providing regular reports to the Governor and 
Legislature on LLRW generation in the State. These activities are funded annually by State Appropriations through 
a sub-allocation from the New York State Department of Health.  

NYSERDA is also responsible for coordination of nuclear material matters, including serving as the State liaison 
with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  

West Valley 
NYSERDA manages, on behalf of the State, the Western New York Nuclear Service Center (West Valley), which 
is the site of a former plant for reprocessing used nuclear fuel. Through 1972, the former plant operator, Nuclear 
Fuel Services, Inc., generated as a by-product of its reprocessing operations, more than 600,000 gallons of liquid, 
high-level radioactive waste, which were stored at the site. In 1980, Congress enacted the West Valley 
Demonstration Project Act (West Valley Act). Pursuant to the West Valley Act, the U.S. Department of Energy 
(DOE) is carrying out a demonstration project to: (1) solidify the liquid high-level radioactive waste at West Valley; 
(2) transport the solidified waste to a permanent federal repository; and (3) decontaminate and decommission the 
reprocessing plant and the facilities, materials, and hardware used in the project. 

NYSERDA also maintains, on behalf of the State, the State-Licensed Disposal Area (SDA), which is a shut-down 
commercial low-level radioactive waste disposal facility at West Valley. NYSERDA is evaluating how to remediate 
and close this facility in accordance with regulatory requirements. 

 STEP® (Saratoga Technology + Energy Park®) 
NYSERDA owns, on behalf of the State, a 280-acre parcel of land in Malta (Saratoga County), New York. The 
site was once used for rocket and weapons-testing programs and space-research activities. It was later subject to 
certain remediation measures under a March 1998 Consent Decree as a “Superfund” site. It was designated in 
2001 as a business park devoted to the development of new, clean energy technologies. NYSERDA owns and 
operates a building on the site that is leased to various private company tenants. 

Utility Bond Financing 
As part of its Bond Financing Program, NYSERDA issues bonds and notes for participating gas and electric utility 
companies and other private purpose users to finance certain energy-related projects. This program permits a 
private enterprise to obtain the benefits of tax-exempt financing for projects that qualify under NYSERDA's 
enabling statute and under relevant provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.  
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

Other 
Other programs represent an aggregate of smaller programs/initiatives.   These activities are primarily funded 
through various third-party reimbursements and federal energy grants.  

NY Green Bank 
The NY Green Bank, a division of NYSERDA, is a $1 billion initiative created in 2013.  Its mission is "to 
accelerate clean energy deployment in New York State by working in partnership with the private sector to 
transform financing markets".   

The key elements of the NY Green Bank's mission are partnering with private sector participants, implementing 
structures that overcome barriers and address gaps in current clean energy financing markets, and transforming 
those markets by enabling greater scale, new and expanded asset classes and liquidity.  These factors combined 
have the objectives to motivate faster and more extensive implementation of clean energy assets within New York 
State, foster greater energy choices, reduce environmental impacts and accrue more green energy advantages per 
public dollar spent for the benefit of all New Yorkers.  

Pursuant to a December 2013 Order of the PSC, initial funding of $165.6 million was made available to the NY 
Green Bank. The funding consisted of $3.5 million in uncommitted NYSERDA Energy Efficiency Portfolio 
Standard I (EEPS 1) funds; $22.1 million in uncommitted NYSERDA System Benefits Charge (SBC) funds; $50.0 
million in NYSERDA Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) funds; and $90.0 million in uncommitted utility EEPS 
I funds. In addition to the PSC Order, NYSERDA also contributed $52.9 million of its own Regional Greenhouse 
Gas Initiative (RGGI) revenues to the NY Green Bank for a total initial capitalization of $219 million. 

 (2)  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a)     Basis of presentation 
The basic financial statements include government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements, proprietary fund financial statements, and fiduciary fund financial statements.  

The government-wide financial statements report information on governmental and business-type activities, and 
consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities. These statements exclude information about 
fiduciary activities where NYSERDA holds assets in a trustee or agency capacity for others since such assets 
cannot be used to support NYSERDA’s own programs.  

The Governmental Fund financial statements report governmental activities, and consist of a Balance Sheet and a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. The funds presented in the Governmental 
Funds statements are categorized as either major or non-major funds (the latter are aggregated as “Other”) as 
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

The Proprietary Fund financial statements, based on an Enterprise type fund, report business-type activities for 
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services, and consist of a Statement of Net Position, a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash flows.   The NY 
Green Bank is presented in the Proprietary Fund financial statements. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements report assets held by NYSERDA in a fiduciary capacity for others, and 
consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. 
NYSERDA’s fiduciary funds include: (1) funds held for reimbursement to the State for costs associated with the 
Low-Level Radioactive Waste Management Act of 1986; (2) funds that, pursuant to a Cooperative Agreement, 
must be turned over to the U.S. Department of Energy upon delivery of the solidified high-level radioactive waste 
from West Valley to a permanent federal disposal repository to provide for perpetual care and management of the 
waste; and (3) funds held in an irrevocable trust maintained by a third-party trustee to receive employer 
contributions for NYSERDA’s health insurance premiums for benefits provided to NYSERDA employees and/ 
or their eligible spouses and dependent children after active employment ends (postemployment). 

23 



NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total, but not by 
separate governmental activities and major funds. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute 
a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with 
NYSERDA's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013, from which the summarized information 
was derived. 

(b)    Basis of accounting 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the Enterprise Funds, and the Fiduciary Funds financial statements.  Revenues 
resulting from exchange transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues resulting from non-
exchange transactions, such as program funding received in the form of grants, contributions and State 
appropriations, are recognized when all eligibility requirements (if any) have been met.  

NYSERDA’s administrative overhead charges are included as program direct expenses in the Statement of 
Activities. 

Financial statements for governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when they become measurable and available (expected to be collected in the next 12 months).  

(c)    Investments 
 Investments are recorded at fair value, which reflects quoted market prices for U.S. government obligations, and 
amortized cost for all other investments.  

(d)    Capital assets 
 Generally, assets with a cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years are capitalized 
and reported at historical cost in the government-wide financial statements. Depreciation is calculated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the capital assets, which range from three to 50 years, and is 
reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Capital asset purchases are recorded as 
expenditures in the governmental funds financial statements. 

(e)   Deferred revenue 
 Deferred revenue consists of funds received or receivable in advance of revenue recognition conditions having 
been met. 

(f)     Compensated absences 
 NYSERDA employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination or 
retirement, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation leave up to the equivalent of 45 days, and sick 
leave up to a maximum of five days. Retired employees may use additional accumulated sick leave to pay for the 
employee share of health insurance premiums. 

 NYSERDA's accrual for compensated absences, included in the government-wide financial statement amount for 
long-term liabilities, includes fringe benefits on compensated absences and estimated costs to use employee sick 
leave for post-retirement health benefits. Compensated absences are not accrued in the governmental funds 
financial statements. 

(g)    New York State Assessments 
 New York State Assessments for the year ended March 31, 2014 consisted of $12,476,157 in fees assessed by the 
State under Section 2975 of the Public Authorities Law (Governmental Cost Recovery System) for general 
governmental services, and $394,000 paid to the State under a budget bill pursuant to Article VII of the New York 
State Constitution.  
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NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

(h)     Payment to NYS 
Pursuant to the enacted State Budget for fiscal year 2013-14, NYSERDA made a payment of $25 million to the 
state general fund from RGGI program funds.  The Budget also provided an appropriation of $25 million to 
NYSERDA which may be used to reimburse eligible costs under the RGGI Cleaner Greener Communities 
program, which was re-appropriated in the fiscal year 2014-15 State Budget.   

(i)   Net position restricted for specific programs 
 NYSERDA administers certain programs on behalf of the PSC and others whereby funds are provided at program 
inception or on a fixed payment schedule over the program duration, but the terms of the program sponsor or 
enabling legislation limit the use of funds to certain program purposes. Frequently, the collection and recording of 
revenues does not occur in the same accounting period as the expenditure of such funds, and the difference is 
reported as Net Position Restricted for Specific Programs on the Statement of Net Position.  

 Following is a summary of Restricted Net Position and related commitments as of March 31, 2014: 

(Amounts in thousands) 
Contractual 
Obligations 

less Accounts 
Restricted Payable & 

Net Accrued Pre-  Total 
Position Expenses Encumbrances Commitments 

Governmental Activities: 
New York Energy $mart  $158,482 92,291 16,296 108,587 
Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard 127,186 214,483 229,435 443,918 
Technology and Market Development Portfolio 196,332 68,789 106,516 175,305 
Renewable Portfolio Standard 393,184 772,791 105,291 878,082 
Energy Research and Development 26,010 21,123 11,404 32,528 
RGGI 208,543 31,002 65,906 96,908 
GJGNY 75,960 8,304 15,410 23,714 
Energy Analysis 601 149 250 399 
West Valley 844 6,334 253 6,587 
Other 62,188 26,645 38,239 64,884 
Total Governmental Activities: $1,249,330 1,241,911 589,000 1,830,911 

Business-type Activities: 
NY Green Bank  218,216 - - - 
Total Business-type Activities: 218,216 - - - 

25 

Pre-encumbrances consist of planned funding for contracts awarded and under negotiation; and planned funding 
under active development through open solicitations with upcoming proposal due dates. 

The outstanding contractual commitments in excess of Restricted Net Position under certain Functions/Programs 
will be funded from future scheduled collections and reimbursements. 

(j)     Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingencies. Estimates 
also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 



NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

(3)    CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Pursuant to Public Authorities Law Section 1859(1), the Commissioner of the New York State Department of 
Taxation and Finance (the Department) serves as fiscal agent for NYSERDA’s cash and investments, maintaining 
such funds on NYSERDA’s behalf and implementing investments subject to the Department’s policies and with 
direction and authorization from NYSERDA. NYSERDA has a written investment policy that applies to all its 
investments. The policy permits deposits with financial institutions approved by the fiscal agent and permits 
investments in: certificates of deposit of bank or trust companies located in New York State; obligations of New 
York State and the United States government and certain of their agencies; repurchase agreements subject to 
certain limitations; and money market funds subject to certain limitations.  

The following schedule presents cash and investments as of March 31, 2014 (except for Other Postemployment 
Benefits within Fiduciary Funds, which is as of December 31, 2013). 
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(Amounts in thousands) 
Governmental Funds 

Weighted 
Average 

% of Maturity 
Fair Value Total (months) 

Cash and money market $49,958 4.2 n/a 
Repurchase agreements 3,200 0.3 0.1 
Certificates of deposit 112 <0.1 5.6 
U.S. Treasury Bills 41,522 3.4 2.9 
U.S. Treasury Strips 1,110,877 92.1 24.6 
Total $1,205,669 100.0 23.7 

Current portion $268,381 

(Amounts in thousands) 
Proprietary Funds 

Weighted 
Average 

% of Maturity 
Fair Value Total (months) 

Cash and money market $1,890 0.9 n/a 
U.S. Treasury Bills 65,366 31.6 6.5 
U.S. Treasury Strips 139,748 67.5 18.5 
Total $207,004 100.0 14.7 

Current Portion $92,872 

(Amounts in thousands) 
Fiduciary Funds 

Weighted 
Average 

% of Maturity 
Fair Value Total (months) 

Cash and money market $1,138 <0.1 n/a 
Mutual funds 6,237 10.4 n/a 
Exchange traded funds 21,755 36.5 n/a 
U.S. Treasury Bills 2,945 4.9 1.3 
U.S. Treasury Strips 28,743 48.2 16.7 
Total $60,818 100.0 15.3 



NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

The following is a summary of cash and investments of Governmental and Proprietary Funds by funding source 
and related contractual commitments as of March 31, 2014 (excludes Fiduciary Funds): 

27 

(Amounts in thousands) 

Cash and Contractual Pre- Total 
Investments Obligations Encumbrances Commitments 

Governmental Funds: 
New York Energy Smart (SBCIII) $166,872 101,901 16,296 118,197 
Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard 32,782 234,699 229,435 464,134 
Technology and Market Development 196,938 73,226 106,516 179,742 

Renewable Portfolio Standard  413,860 794,467 105,291 899,758 
RGGI 220,036  36,599 65,906 102,505 
Other 175,181 74,135 66,024 140,159 
Total Governmental Funds: $1,205,669 1,315,027 589,468 1,904,495 

Proprietary Funds: 
NY Green Bank  207,004 - - - 
Total Proprietary Funds: 207,004 - - - 

Interest Rate Risk. NYSERDA investment policies limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. Investment maturities are selected based on anticipated 
cash flow needs.  

The NYSERDA Other Postemployment Benefit Trust's (OPEB) risk tolerance is understood by the Plan 
Administrator such that achieving the Plan’s investment objectives is not guaranteed and there will be time periods 
for which these objectives will not be met. The Plan Administrator also recognizes that some risk must be 
assumed to achieve the Trust’s long-term investment objectives and accepts the inevitable fluctuations in returns 
that will occur. While it is understood that a certain level of risk is expected in the Trust’s portfolio, the ability to 
withstand short and intermediate term variability was specifically considered in the development of the Investment 
Policy Statement risk tolerances. 

Credit Risk. Money market fund investments consist of non-rated funds whose investments are restricted to U.S. 
government obligations.  

The Trust’s investment policy places limitations on the concentration of investments in certain industries, with 
certain companies, and among asset classes and within investment policy ranges.  

Concentration of Credit Risk. NYSERDA’s investment policy limits investments with any single eligible banking 
institution to no more than 35% of its total investment portfolio, except as otherwise required by any policies and 
practices of the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance. As of March 31, 2014, NYSERDA did not have any 
investments with institutions that were individually in excess of 5% of total investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits. Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if the deposits are not covered by 
depository insurance or deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution’s trust department or agent, but not in 
the name of NYSERDA.  

In accordance with existing policies and procedures, the Commissioner of the New York State Department of 
Taxation and Finance, as Fiscal Agent for NYSERDA, monitors deposit balances for the purpose of determining 
collateralization levels. Collateral sufficient to cover all uninsured deposits is held at the Department's custodial 
bank. 
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Custodial Credit Risk for Investments. Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are 
uninsured, are not registered in the name of NYSERDA and are held either by the counterparty or the 
counterparty’s trust department or agent, but not in the name of NYSERDA.  

Equity and fixed income investments owned directly by NYSERDA, which trade in the United States (U.S.) 
markets, are held at NYSERDA's Fiscal Agent’s custodian, in separate accounts, in the name of the Comptroller 
of the State of New York in Trust for NYSERDA. These securities are typically held in electronic form through 
the Federal Book Entry System and by the Depository Trust Company (DTC) and its subsidiaries acting as an 
agent of our Fiscal Agent’s custodian bank. 

(4)    RECEIVABLE FROM NEW YORK STATE 

As of March 31, 2014, the amount due from New York State is $7.4 million, which represents grant receivables 
and other contractual provisions.      

(5) LOANS RECEIVABLE 

Loans receivable exist under the Green Jobs-Green New York program to finance energy efficiency retrofits in 
residential, multifamily, small business, and not-for-profit buildings. The residential component offers unsecured 
loans originated by a lender using pre-established loan underwriting criteria, which are then purchased or funded 
by NYSERDA and serviced by a third-party loan servicer. Multifamily and small business/not-for-profit loans are 
provided through participating lenders with NYSERDA providing 50% of the principal, subject to certain limits, 
at 0% interest. As of March 31, 2014, 4,866 loans are outstanding and 99.9% of the loan portfolio value is current 
on payment requirements. 

Loans receivable at March 31, 2014 include the following: 
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(Amounts in thousands) 

Number of Loans Loans Outstanding 
Residential Energy Efficiency 4,841 $42,931 
Small Business/Not-for-Profit 11 267 
Multifamily Building 14 2,491 

4,866 $45,689 

Loans receivable at March 31, 2014 mature as follows: 

(Amounts in thousands) 

Small 
Fiscal year Residential Business/ 
ending Energy Not-for- Multifamily 
March 31, Efficiency Profit Building Total 
2015 $3,184 51 351 3,586 

2016 3,324 56 366 3,746 

2017 3,311 54 367 3,732 

2018 3,162 41 367 3,570 

2019 3,098 37 399 3,534 

2020-2024 15,124 28 621 15,773 

2025-2029 11,693 - 20 11,713 

2030-2034 35 - - 35 

Total $42,931 267 2,491 45,689 
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(6) CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2014 was as follows: 
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(Amounts in thousands) 

Beginning Retirements/ Ending 
 Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance 

Land $685 - - 685 
Land improvements 5,342 414 - 5,756 
Buildings 8,982 - - 8,982 
Machinery and equipment 10,981 871 (73) 11,779 
Leasehold improvements  586  898  (5)  1,479 

26,576 2,183 (78) 28,681 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land Improvements (732) (197) - (929) 
Buildings (3,944) (278) - (4,222) 
Machinery and equipment (8,509) (1,558) 73 (9,994) 
Leasehold improvements (508)  (53)  5  (556) 

Capital assets, net $12,883 97 - 12,980 

(7) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended March 31, 2014 was as follows: 

(Amounts in thousands) 
Amounts 

Beginning Ending Due within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Notes payable $100 - (38) 62 18 
Compensated absences 6,332 4,532  (3,338) 7,526 2,609 
Bonds payable - 24,300 - 24,300 2,195 
Postemployment benefits ___- 3,569 (3,569) ____- ____- 
 (see note 11) 

 Long-term liabilities $6,432 32,401 (6,945) 31,888 4,822 

Notes Payable reflects the purchase of eight Xerox copiers under a Xerox payment plan with a term of 60 months, 
at an annual interest rate of 0.0%. 

  Bonds payable represents Residential Energy Efficiency Financing Revenue Bonds (Series 2013A) issued in 
August 2013, secured with a pledge of payments from residential energy efficiency loans issued under the Green 
Jobs-Green New York program. The bonds have semi-annual interest payments each January and July 1st, and 
annual principal payments each July 1st from January 1, 2014 to July 1, 2028.  The bonds were issued with serial 
maturities with interest rates from 0.55 to 4.106%.  The bonds were issued as Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds, 
which provide an interest subsidy from the federal government for a portion of the interest costs on the bonds.  
Such interest subsidies are subject to the federal sequester and future subsidies may be affected by changes in the 
federal sequester.  Debt service accounts for the payment of principal and interest are maintained with the Trustee, 
The Bank of New York Mellon.  Loan repayments from pledged loans are transferred to the Trustee monthly.  The 
bonds require that NYSERDA maintain cash and future scheduled repayments in each bond year that are not less 
than 110% of annual debt service, and surplus funds on hand with the Trustee may be withdrawn by NYSERDA 
provided that cash and scheduled repayments are not less than 120% of annual debt service.  Payment of principal 
and interest on the bonds are guaranteed by the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation.  Under the 
terms of an agreement with the guarantor, NYSERDA deposited with an escrow agent, 
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The Bank of New York Mellon, approximately $8.5 million in a Collateral Reserve account, which may be used by 
the guarantor to fund or reimburse its guarantee if loan repayments and interest subsidies are insufficient to meet 
scheduled payments on the bonds, and if there are insufficient additional funds available from the Green Jobs-
Green New York program revolving loan fund. 

The Series 2013A Bonds include various debt covenants of NYSERDA: enforce the conditions of loan 
agreements which are the source of pledged revenues;  appoint and enforce the obligations of a servicer for the 
pledged loan payments; prepare and furnish to the Trustee a projection of pledged revenues, administrative 
expenses, debt service, scheduled credit facility fees and projected net revenues by January 15, April 15, July 15, 
and October 15 of each year; and no later than 30 days after furnishing the projection cause additional pledged 
loans or deposits to be provided, as necessary, such that projected net revenues, together with amounts held by the 
Trustee, will equal at least 110% of projected annual debt service in each bond year. 

As of March 31, 2014, future debt service requirements on the Notes and Bonds Payable are: 
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(Amounts in thousands) 
Fiscal year ending 
March 31,  Note Payable Bonds Payable Total 

Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2015 $18 - 2,195 588 2,801 

2016 16 - 2,080 578 2,674 

2017 16 - 2,105 562 2,683 

2018 12 - 1,930 535 2,477 

2019 - - 1,775 502 2,277 

2020-24 - - 8,370 1,828 10,198 

2025-29 - - 5,845 529 6,374 

Total $62 - 24,300 5,122 29,484 

(8) RETIREMENT PLAN 

There are two retirement plans for NYSERDA employees: the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement 
System (System), and the New York State Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan (VDC). Nearly all employees of 
NYSERDA participate in one of these two plans. 

 The System is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retirement plan. The State 
Comptroller is sole trustee and administrative head of the System. The System issues a publicly available financial 
report including financial statements and required supplementary information that may be obtained by writing to 
the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244. The 
System provides retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Retirement benefits are established by 
the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law. Retirement benefits, contributory requirements and 
vesting depend on the point in time at which an employee first joined the System (membership “tier”). Members 
of the System who joined before July 27, 1976 are enrolled in a noncontributory plan; NYSERDA contributes the 
entire amount determined to be payable to the System for those members. Personnel who joined the System after 
July 27, 1976 through January 1, 2010 and who have less than 10 years of accredited service are required by law to 
contribute three percent of their gross salary; NYSERDA contributes the balance payable to the System during 
that period, and the full amount determined to be payable thereafter. Members who joined the System between 
January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 contribute three percent of their gross salary during the full term of 
employment. Members who joined the System after April 1, 2012 contribute between three percent and six 
percent, depending on their salary, during the full term of employment. Retirement benefits vest after five to 10 
years of accredited service, depending on the applicable tier.  
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NYSERDA’s contributions to the System, expressed in dollars and as a percentage of salary, for each of the years 
ended March 31, 2012 through March 31, 2014 were: 
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 (Amounts in thousands) 
Fiscal year ended 
March 31, 

Contributions Contribution Rate 
2014 $4,947 11.4%-28.8% 
2013 4,378 10.1%-25.4% 
2012 4,301 12.7%-21.5% 

NYSERDA made 100% of the required contribution for each of the years displayed above. 

The VDC is a multiple-employer, defined contribution plan administered by the Director of University Benefits 
for the State University of New York (SUNY); TIAA-CREF serves as the third-party administrator. On July 1, 
2013, the VDC option was made available to NYSERDA employees hired on or after that date whose annual 
salary is $75,000 or more. Those employees voluntarily electing the VDC plan are prohibited from joining the 
System (defined benefit plan) at a later date (and the opposite also applies; plan participation elections are 
irrevocable). VDC provides benefits through annuity contracts and provides retirement and death benefits to 
those employees who elected to participate in the VDC. Employees have the ability to choose from a variety of 
investment providers for the VDC. Benefits are determined by the amount of individual accumulations and the 
retirement income option selected. All benefits generally vest after the completion of one year of service if the 
employee is retained thereafter. Employees electing to participate in the VDC plan are required to contribute 
between 3% and 6% of gross earnings, dependent upon their salary, for their entire working career; NYSERDA 
contributes 8%.  

No employees were vested in the VDC at March 31, 2014 and therefore no employer contributions were made to 
the VDC during the fiscal year end March 31, 2014. 

(9) LEASES 

NYSERDA has multi-year operating leases expiring May 31, 2016; July 7, 2017; September 30, 2018; and October 
30, 2027, for office space in West Valley, Buffalo, Albany, and New York City, respectively. For the year ended 
March 31, 2014, rental expense for all office facilities was approximately $841,000. 

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum rental payments for NYSERDA’s office space as of March 
31, 2014: 

(Amounts in thousands) 

Fiscal year ending 
March 31, 
2015 $1,050 

2016 1,498 

2017 1,363 

2018 1,341 

2019 1,102 

Thereafter  8,255 

Total $14,609 

NYSERDA is also the lessor of certain equipment comprising a cooling water structure at the Indian Point Energy 
Center in Buchanan, New York under a lease that expires on March 31, 2017, with annual future minimum lease 
rental payments of $999,600 for the fiscal years ending March 31, 2015-2017. 
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(10) CONTINGENCIES 

(a)   Western New York Nuclear Service Center 
Under the federal West Valley Demonstration Project Act and an implementing Cooperative Agreement between 
DOE and NYSERDA, the federal government pays 90 percent of the West Valley Demonstration Project 
(WVDP) costs, and NYSERDA, on behalf of the State of New York, pays the remaining 10 percent. In addition, 
in 2010, the U.S. District Court for the Western District of New York approved an agreement between New York 
State and the federal government that resolved most of the claims asserted in a 2006 lawsuit filed by NYSERDA 
and New York State against the federal government and DOE regarding the financial responsibility for cleaning 
up certain facilities at West Valley.  The agreement defines a specific cost share for the cleanup of a number of 
facilities that had long been in dispute between NYSERDA and DOE. For example, under this agreement, the 
federal government will pay a 30 percent share of costs associated with the State Licensed Disposal Area (SDA), 
and NYSERDA, on behalf of the State, will pay the remaining 70 percent. Remediation costs for the North 
Plateau Groundwater Plume will be split equally between the State and federal government, and costs for 
remediating the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Licensed Disposal Area will also be a 50/50 split. The two 
governments agreed that other facilities are covered by the WVDP Act, such as the Main Process Plant building, 
and thus the federal government will pay 90% of the cleanup costs. 

In January 2010, NYSERDA and DOE issued a final Environmental Impact Statement, which identifies and 
assesses the potential environmental impacts of a range of reasonable alternatives proposed to meet DOE’s 
responsibilities under the WVDP Act and options for the State of New York, acting through NYSERDA, for 
management of West Valley. In April and May 2010, respectively, DOE and NYSERDA issued decision 
documents that formally selected the Phased Decision making alternative for continuing the cleanup. Under 
Phased Decision making, decommissioning work will be conducted in two phases. During Phase 1, the Main 
Process Plant building and several other highly contaminated facilities will be removed at an estimated cost of 
approximately $1 billion. As the Phase 1 cleanup work is proceeding, DOE and NYSERDA will conduct 
additional scientific studies to reduce uncertainties in the decisions for the Phase 2 portion of the cleanup. The 
2010 Environmental Impact Statement states that the Phase 1 work would take 10 years and cost approximately $1 
billion based on a federal funding level of $75 million per year. Since 2010, actual federal funding levels have been 
closer to $65 million, and the proposed budget for FFY 2015 is only $60.5 million.  A funding level of $65 million 
through the end of Phase 1 will extend the duration of the Phase 1 work to about 15 years and will add about $100 
million to the cost of the work. Funding at $60 million through the end of Phase 1 will extend the duration of the 
Phase 1 work to 20 years and will add about $200 million to the total project cost. The Phase 2 decisions, which 
will be made within 10 years of the Phase 1 decisions- i.e. by May 2020- will address the remaining facilities, 
including the High-Level Waste Tanks, State-Licensed Disposal Area, NRC-Licensed Disposal Area, and the main 
body of a groundwater contamination plume. Total costs for completing the Phase 2 work range from $500 
million to $8.2 billion, and are dependent on the alternative selected for the remaining facilities.  

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pollution Remediation Obligations, no liability has been included in NYSERDA’s financial statements as of March 
31, 2014 or 2013 for this contingency because NYSERDA expects to continue to be reimbursed from State 
appropriations for the State's share of the costs of the Demonstration Project, any costs NYSERDA may incur in 
relation to the SDA, and any other costs allocated to NYSERDA under the agreement resolving the lawsuit 
referenced above.  

(b)   Energy Analysis- Low-Level Radioactive Waste 
Pursuant to the Low-Level Radioactive Waste (LLRW) Management Act of 1986, NYSERDA annually assesses 
licensees of operating nuclear power plants an amount sufficient to reimburse the State for the LLRW disposal 
facilities development activities of the Departments of Health and Environmental Conservation, and must provide 
nuclear power plant licensees with a user-fee reduction, when the disposal facilities are operational, equal to the 
statutory assessments collected plus interest at a fair market rate. During the year ended March 31, 2014, 
NYSERDA paid, from the agency fund, a total of $4,272,249 to reimburse the State for such costs pursuant to 
Public Authorities Law Section 1854-d(2)(a).    
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(c)   Bond Financing Program 
The principal and interest on obligations issued for participating gas and electric utility companies and other 
private purpose users are payable solely from payments made by participating companies. They are not general 
obligations of NYSERDA nor do they constitute an indebtedness of or a charge against the general credit of 
NYSERDA, or cause any monetary liability to NYSERDA. These bonds and notes are not a debt of the State of 
New York. 

The bonds and notes issued bear the name of NYSERDA and the participating company.  NYSERDA assigns 
most of its rights and obligations to a trustee who is responsible for, among other things, disbursing bond and 
note proceeds and handling principal and interest payments. As of March 31, 2014, all participating companies 
were current in their debt service payments for these bonds and notes, the principal of which totaled 
approximately $3.4 billion. 

(d)   Risk Management 
NYSERDA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. NYSERDA maintains commercial insurance coverage 
for each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses to NYSERDA. NYSERDA has not experienced any reductions in coverage and has not had any 
insurance settlements exceeding the coverage in the past three years. 

(e)   Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) Program 
Pursuant to Orders of the PSC, NYSERDA is the central procurement administrator to manage an incentive-
based procurement mechanism to support the development of additional renewable energy resources. The Orders 
directed each of the State’s six investor-owned electric utility companies to collect an RPS surcharge to fund the 
program through a volumetric charge applied to the delivery portion of customer bills, commencing October 1, 
2005. Each utility was directed to establish RPS collection rates sufficient to collect certain amounts specified in 
the Order for each of the years 2005 through 2024, with any over or under collections being trued up on an annual 
basis. In the aggregate, future scheduled collections total approximately $1.98 billion over the remaining 11 year 
collection period. 

Pursuant to requirements of the Order, each utility has entered into a contractual agreement with NYSERDA to 
make quarterly payments to NYSERDA, continuing through October 31, 2024, based on the annual collection 
amounts prescribed in the Order. Each utility’s payment obligation is fixed and is not adjusted for actual RPS 
surcharge collections. Procurement contracts entered into by NYSERDA and funded with RPS funds become 
general obligations of NYSERDA, payable pursuant to such contract terms. NYSERDA intends to ensure that 
procurement contracts entered into shall not cause amounts payable under such contracts to exceed at any time 
the amounts due and payable under the funding agreements with the utility companies. As of March 31, 2014, 
NYSERDA has outstanding contractual obligations totaling approximately $794.5 million payable at varying dates 
upon successful operation of the renewable generation facilities, which will be funded in part from RPS surcharge 
collections to be received in the future pursuant to Order of the PSC. 

(f)    Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard 
Pursuant to Orders of the PSC, the EEPS program was extended until December 31, 2015, with Systems Benefit 
Charge (SBC) collections from utilities scheduled through December 31, 2018.  The collections were scheduled on 
a deferred basis taking into consideration the unexpended balance of previous EEPS collections prior to the 
extension of the program, as well as the projected timing of anticipated future expenditures. In the aggregate, 
future scheduled collections total approximately $959.6 million over the remaining five year collection period. 

Procurement contracts entered into by NYSERDA and funded with EEPS funds become general obligations of 
NYSERDA, payable pursuant to such contract terms. NYSERDA intends to ensure that procurement contracts 
entered into shall not cause amounts payable under such contracts to exceed at any time the amounts due and 
payable under the funding agreements with the utility companies. As of March 31, 2014, NYSERDA has 
outstanding contractual obligations totaling approximately $234.7 million payable at varying dates, which will be 
funded in part from SBC surcharge collections to be received in the future pursuant to Orders of the PSC. 

33 



NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
March 31, 2014 

(g)     Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative 
On January 29, 2009, a lawsuit was initiated in State Supreme Court against the Governor, NYSERDA, and other 
State entities, claiming that the RGGI regulations are unlawful and discriminatory.  The original parties to the 
lawsuit as well as others that were joined as parties, including Consolidated Edison, entered into a settlement 
agreement resolving the litigation that was approved on October 1, 2010 by the court. Under the terms of the 
settlement, NYSERDA will utilize proceeds from RGGI auctions to meet its obligations to pay Con Edison in 
accordance with a formula set forth in the settlement agreement. Con Edison, in turn, will use the monies 
provided by NYSERDA to fund energy efficiency and renewable energy programs with significant carbon 
reduction potential within its service territory.   

NYSERDA has paid Con Edison approximately $13.0 million to date related to this settlement. The remaining 
obligation, as recorded in the financial statements under Con Edison payable at March 31, 2014, of $5.9 million, 
represents all estimated remaining payments due Con Edison. 

(h)     Con Edison System-Wide Demand Reduction and Gas Efficiency Programs 
The terms of the Orders for these programs require NYSERDA to return to Con Edison any monies no longer 
committed, until such time as all retained funds are fully expended. As of March 31, 2014, retained funds subject 
to possible refund, not including the amount already recorded in the financial statements as Con Edison payable at 
that date, are $5.2 and $1.5 million, respectively for the Demand Reduction and Gas Efficiency Programs. Any 
future refunds due would be recognized as program expenditures in the fiscal year the related commitments are 
disencumbered. 

(11)   POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS 

The New York Civil Service Law, Section 163(2), provides for health insurance coverage for retired employees of 
New York State including their spouses and dependent children. The law extends to public benefit corporations. 
NYSERDA maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan (the Plan) providing this benefit to eligible retirees 
and/or their spouses and dependent children. Eligibility is determined by membership in the New York State and 
Local Employees’ Retirement System, enrollment in the New York State Health Insurance Program at the time of 
retirement and the completion of a minimum number of years of service as required by the employee’s 
membership tier in the retirement system. The plan provides that retired employees pay the same percentage share 
of the health insurance premiums as that charged for active State management confidential employees. Plan 
members presently contribute 16% of the premium for individual coverage and 31% of the incremental premium 
for family coverage. NYSERDA is billed by the New York State Department of Civil Service monthly for pay-as-
you-go funding requirements, however payments are made from an irrevocable OPEB Trust account established 
in March 2010. The purpose of the OPEB Trust is for the accumulation of funds to pay future benefit costs. The 
Trust’s funds are held by a third-party trustee. The Trust is managed by a five-member Plan Administrator, 
consisting of NYSERDA officers, in consultation with the Chair of the Audit and Finance Committee or his or 
her designee. As of March 31, 2014, the Authority has contributed $25.2 million to the OPEB Trust to fully fund 
the actuarially determined accumulated OPEB obligation as calculated under the requirements of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. As of March 31, 2014, the value of the OPEB Trust investments totals 
$30.6 million. 

The Authority’s OPEB Trust is recorded as a fiduciary fund within NYSERDA’s financial statements and reflects 
the Trust’s legal fiscal year-end of December 31.  

NYSERDA’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expense for the year ended March 31, 2014 is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of NYSERDA. The ARC represents a level funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and to amortize unfunded 
actuarial liabilities over 30 years.  
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The following table summarizes NYSERDA’s annual OPEB expense for the year ended March 31, 2014, the 
amount contributed to the Plan, and changes in NYSERDA’s OPEB obligation: 
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(Amounts in thousands) 

Annual required contribution 

 Normal cost $2,381 

 Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 1,188 

Total annual OPEB cost 3,569 
 Contributions made (3,569) 
 Change in net OPEB obligation  - 
 Net OPEB obligation- beginning of year  - 
 Net OPEB obligation- end of year $  - 

NYSERDA’s annual OPEB cost amounted to $3,569,200; $3,631,900; and $3,906,000 for the years ended March 
31, 2014; 2013; and 2012, respectively. The percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan was 100% 
and the net OPEB obligation at the end of each fiscal year was $0.  

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding 
the funded status of the Plan and ARC of NYSERDA are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-
year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the Plan as understood by NYSERDA and 
Plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the historical pattern of 
sharing benefit costs between NYSERDA and Plan members. The projection of benefits for financial reporting 
purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of 
cost sharing between the employer and Plan members in the future. 

The methods and assumptions used included techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. The following significant assumptions were made in the actuarial valuation: 

Retirement age for active employees – Based on assumptions used under the New York State and Local Employees’ 
Retirement System (ERS), since eligibility for NYSERDA employees covered under this plan is based on 
membership in that system. The ERS assumptions were based on extensive analysis of their covered populations.  
Marital status – Assumed 75% of future retirees will be married, with male spouses assumed to be three years older 
than female spouses. 
Mortality – RP 2000 mortality tables issued by the Society of Actuaries.  
Turnover – Rates were based on age and length of service for the first 10 years and age thereafter as the basis for 
assigning active members a probability of remaining employed until the assumed retirement age. 
Healthcare cost trend rate – The expected rate of increase in healthcare premiums was based on projections developed 
by the actuary’s healthcare specialists. Rates of 8.6 and 8.7% for the two plans with the highest enrollment were 
assumed initially,  reduced to an ultimate rate of 5.2% for both plans after 54 years was used. 
Health insurance premiums – A Blend of actual 2013 and projected 2014 health insurance premiums were used as the 
basis for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid. 
Investment return – As of March 2014, Plan benefits are pre-funded in a segregated Trust, and a discount rate of 
6.5% was used, representing the long-term earnings potential of investments in the Trust.  
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The actuarial cost method used was the projected unit credit method. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
being amortized as a level dollar amount over a period of 30 years.  The remaining amortization period at March 
31, 2014, was 23 years. 

As of March 31, 2014, there were 72 retirees and dependent survivors actively receiving benefits and 300 active 
plan members.  

The plan also provides that the dollar value, subject to certain limitations, of member’s accumulated sick leave 
credits at the time of retirement may be used to offset the portion of health insurance premiums paid by retirees. 
NYSERDA’s estimated liability associated with sick leave credits is recorded as a Compensated Absence within 
“Other long-term liabilities” in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 16. The Trust does not 
accumulate resources for the purpose of paying this portion of the health insurance premiums, nor does it pay any 
benefits for this purpose. NYSERDA’s liability for that portion of the premiums is not included in the actuarially 
determined liabilities of the Plan or the ARC or OPEB expense calculations.  

The cost of third-party administrators, actuarial reports, audits and similar costs incurred exclusively for the Trust 
are paid from resources of the Trust. Routine daily administrative costs of administering the benefit plans, 
accounting services and similar costs are absorbed by NYSERDA. 

The Trust has no legally required reserves. 

(12)  INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

The balances reflected in Due to Other Funds and Due from Other Funds reflect the timing difference of when 
expenditures are incurred and when interfund reimbursement occurs.  

Transfers between funds were made as directed by various PSC orders. 
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 NEW YORK STATE ENERGY 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(A Component Unit of the State of New York) 

 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 

March 31, 2014 

 
 
 

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits 
   

(Amounts in thousands) 
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     Unfunded       
    Actuarial     UAAL as a  

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability  

(b) 

Accrued 
Liability  
(UAAL) 

         (b-a) 

 
Funded  
Ratio 
(a/b) 

 
Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

Percentage of 
  Covered  
   Payroll 
   (b-a)/c) 

4/1/2013 3/31/2014 $25,166 $41,696         $16,530        60.4% $27,207      60.8% 

4/1/2012 3/31/2013 $19,891 $39,388         $19,497        50.5% $24,282      80.3% 

4/1/2011 3/31/2012 *      * * * *         * 

4/1/2010 3/31/2011 $10,285 $33,921         $23,636         30%        $24,244      97.5% 

 
 
*Valuation was not performed at this date. 
 
 
See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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